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178 acres to the Western Reserve Historical Society of Cleveland, along with a generous endow-
‘ment to maintain and develop it. Now, the house is open to the public as a museum and directly
across the street from it plans are under way to restore old homes in the area, making a Western
Reserve village.!

The Cranz Home

Located on a hill next to the Hale Homestead, where Oak Hill Road curves sharply to the right,
is the home of Miss Celia Cranz. Built in 1866 by her grandfather Edward Cranz, the farm origi-
nally included 153 acres. The house is typical of farmhouses built in that era and includes a kitch-
en, large dining room, living room, parlor, and two bedrooms upstairs. A large picture window
in the living room gives a beautiful view of the fields across the road.

After Edward died, his son Walter inherited the property. When Walter passed on, Miss Cranz,
with her two sisters Eunice and Mary bought the farm. Together they spent much time and ef-
fort remodeling the home where Miss Cranz now resides.?

Ghent Center: (at the crossroads of Granger and Wye Roads)

The best known landmark at this corner was Delbert Statt’s store, which stood on the corner

IHorton, John J., The Jonathan Hale Farm, A Chronicle of the Cuyahoga Valley, Publication
No. 116, The Western Reserve Historical Society, Cleveland, Ohio, 1961.

2Interview with Miss Celia Cranz, February 21, 1968.
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stead where it recently was opened as a part of the Western Reserve Village being created by the
Western Reserve Historical Society. The Jaggers had three children: Elmus, Charles, and Ella.
Charles Jagger was post-master at Hammond’s Corners for several years, but presently there are
no Jaggers living in-Bath. !

Other quilt blocks display the names of original families and ancestors of Bath residents today:
Fryman, Bissell, Underwood, Arnold, McMillen, Lee, Turner, Blakely, McNeil, Graves, Richard-
son, Martin, McConkey Spafford, Putman, Mack, Wallace, Barber, and Wilcox.2

Just as some of the family names previously mentioned are familiar to Bath residents o is
the name Howe, which is also one of the names of the original settlers decorating Mrs. Stein’s
beautiful quilt. The first Howe in Bath was Captain Richard Howe, born in 1799 in Maryland,
but he moved to Ohio in 1812. Howe was the engineer of the Ohio canal in nertheastern Ohio,
and, therefore, in the Bath area. He was engineer of the Northern Division of the Ohio canal until
1850.

In 1850, Captain Howe went to Sacremento, California, to join the gold rush, but when his
company went bankrupt, he left California and went to work as a surveyor for the government.
Working diligently, he surveyed much of the West, including Mt. Diablo south to the Pacific
Ocean, and this line was used in surveying the rest of California. Tired of the rugged life of the
West, Captain Howe moved back to Ohio and lived on the land of Lewis Hammond on Oak Hill
Road in Bath Township. Living with Lewis he met Roxanna Jones, who was a schoolteacher in
Bath. Howe later married Roxanna, and they bought four hundred acres of land at the Ira Station
of the Valley Railroad. Seven children came from this union. They were Henry Willett, Charles
Richard, Nathan J., twins Edwin and Emily, Mary Ann, and Eber C. Captain Howe died on
March 19, 1872.

‘The present Howe family of Bath is descended from Captain Howe’s eldest son, Henry Willett
(1828-1913). Henry Howe was a lawyer, but because of the great love he had for the outdoors,
he soon abandoned his bar practice and bought a factory in Richfield which produced spokes
for wagon wheels. He was very active in the politics of both Bath and Akron, and he served on
Akron’s Board of Education for many years. In 1835 he married Jane Williamson, who died with-
out bearing any children. Howe then married Isadore Celestia Bell, and they had four children:
Edwin Bell, Frank Richard, Arthur Willett, and Abbey Bell.

Frank Richard Howe, one of Henry Willett Howe’s children, continued to live in Bath for a
number of years, and he owned a printing press and the Howe Publishing Company. He married
Nina Danforth.

Abbey Howe married James Edwin Sheppard, and she worked for many years as post-master
at Ira Station post office. She was also very active in the Grange in Bath.

Edwin Bell Howe, Henry Willett Howe’s eldest son, continued to live on the same farm that
his father and grandfather, Captain Richard Howe, had. He married Cora Underwood in 1877,
and they had five children: Glen Edwin, Henry Willett, Frank Richard, Isadore Bell, and Nina
May. All of Edwin Bell Howe’s children moved out of the Bath area with the exception of Glenn
Howe, who married Gladys Fosnight and lived on the same Howe farm at the Ira station. Gladys
and Glenn had four children: Willitt Glenn, Barbara Alice, Burdette Lewis, and Glenn Edwin Jr.
Glenn Edwin Howe, Sr. is still living and residing at 2129 Ira Road in Bath.

Glenn Edwin Howe, Jr. married Eleanor Horn and they have three children: Brent Alan,
Cynthia Carol and Sandra Lee. The Glenn Howe, Jr's are still residents of Bath, residing at 2123

Unterview. Mrs. Nancy Kalin. February 21, 1968.

2Unterview. Mrs. Alleen Stein. February 16, 1968.
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education, was so incompetent that he was fired at the end of one year. In a fit of rage, however,
he destroyed all school records for that year. As a result, several students, among them Mrs.
Walter A. Grosh (Elizabeth Freeman) and Cecil McNeal, had to make up this lost year in order
fo properly graduate, and continue on to college. The next principal, C. G. Wise was a true re-
former. He had a college degree from Heidelberg University and he brought in extra teachers and
cquipment. He was the leader who first introduced football to the system. His rewards were not
long in coming. By 1909, the school had gained accredidation. !

After the First World War, the growing community of Bath was graced with the presence of
one of the communities wonder educational leaders.

In 1920, a recent graduate of Ohio Northern University came to Bath, Mr. Roy Pugh, a dy-
namic leader, was made principal of the high school, which was at that time affectionately called
the “Temple on the Hill.”

There were 45 students in the high school in 1920. Many problems had to be overcome at
the “Temple on the Hill.” One of the problems was associated with the very name of the school.
the reason for it being the poor construction of the building. The “Temple on the Hill” swayed
inthe wind, some people recall having school called off because of the wind. The “kiddie wagons”
brought the students to school, and this was also a problem in the existence of the school.

Aneed arose in the early 1920’s for a school that could accommodate the growing community
and also contain all the grades under one roof.

September 1923, the date of the opening of Bath School, now the elementary school for most
of Bath. This was the first all grade school in Bath, and in fact the last.

In 1923, the “Temple on the Hill” was torn down. The materials were salvaged and built into
the Zitek home op Ira Road.4
Mr. Pugh was made the principal of Bath School and continued to teach there most of the
years he was principal.
During the following years after the opening of Bath School, there were many memorable
occasions, of these, the picnics and hikes in Whipps Ledges are all fine memories of the students

Unterview, Walter B. Kimpton.
Znterview, Mr. Roy Pugh.
3Interview, Mrs. Walter Grosh.

4Interview, Mr. Roy Pugh.
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Homestead, was immediately opposite “The Other Place”. A blacksmith shop was located
on Ira road west of the corner.

33. The Little Germany Church (Evangelical) was on the southwest corner of Shade and Re-
vere roads, and East Bath cemetery is just west of the former church. The East Bath school
No. 7 was on Shade road about 1000 feet east of the intersection on the south side.

*34. The Carl Douglass home, 3413 West Bath road, built before 1830, is open for tours Sat-
urday July 13th from 10a.m. to 5 p.m., and Sunday July 14th from 1 to 5 p.m. The home
is of Western Reserve architecture, and furnished with beautiful family antiques.

*35. Bath district school No. 2 was a twelve grade school on the southeast corner of Bath and
Cleveland-Massillon roads, and was torn down sometime after it was closed in 1921. *The
Town Hall, also the home of Bath Grange No. 1331, which was organized in 1889, was
built in 1905. There will be exhibits of furniture and memoribilia from 10 a.m. to 9 p.m.,
Saturday and Sunday, July 13th and 14th. Bath cemetery is next to the Town Hall.

36. The Bath Community Church, moved from Ira road to its present location in 1944, is lo-
cated half a mile west of the comner of the south side of Bath road.

The Historical Committee of the Bath Library and the Bath Sesquicentennial Committee is
most grateful for the compilation of this book. Particular acknowledgement is due the partici-
pating students in the senior social studies classes, Mrs. William Bond, their teacher, the graphic
arts department and the administration of Revere schools, Mr. Eugene Miller, superintendent,
and Mr. George Bayliss, principal. Bath residents who aided in gathering information for the
tour, and in many other ways are: Miss Celia Cranz, Mrs. C. V. Plank, Paul Davis, Mrs. Rex Baum-
gardner, Mrs. Earl Miller, Clair Alexander, Oscar Schneyer, Mrs. William Schwinn, Mrs. Edward
Stein, *Mrs. Rex Fryman, *Mrs. Russell Jacot, *Mrs. Maurice Astier, Mrs. C. W. Von Gunten,
Mrs. H. A. Fulton, Mrs. William Sykes, Mr. Rice Hershey, Mrs. Franklin Palmer and Mrs. Robert
Ruschell.

Mis. Robert Hemphill, chairman

*denotes deceased
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high school.

Still farther to the north was Hammond’s corner’s school (corner of Ira and Route 21). It still
exists, though greatly altered as the home of Lisa (Thorpe) Ganyard. This is the second building
to the north on the Northeast corner of Ira and Route 21 (nextto Garth Andrew).

To the east, another schoolhouse stands on Ira Road. It is beside the entrance of Old Trail
School (to the south) and is owned by Mr. George T. Parry. (This is on Ira % mile south of Hale
Homestead.)!

Moving south you enter the “little Germany of Bath”, where all the immigrants gathered and
lived. This schoolhouse still stands at the intersection of Bath and Revere roads.

Still farther south is the McCalister district, named after one of the prominent settlers of that
area. The school was located on the Southwest corner of Sourek and Revere Roads.

At the intersection of Hametown Road and Route 18 (Medina Road) is the Stony Hill district.
The Stony Hill school, built in the early 1890’s was the newest and best equipped of all the
schools. The school previously on the site was moved to Ellis Corners (Montrose) where it be-
came a church. Containing parts of Copley and Granger townships, the school still stands as a
tool shed on the Stein farm, north of Route 18 on Hametown Road.3

P NS s T

Unterview, Mrs. George T. Parry.
Znterview, Mrs. Walter Grosh.

3Interview, Cora Leiby Monegan.
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Westside Church of Christ was built entirely from the Sunday contributions of its parishoners.
Located at 645 Revere Road, at the corner of Smith and Revere Roads, Westside Church of
Christ was built in May, 1966. Before the present building was completed, services were held at
King School on Tallmadge Parkway.

The first pastor was the Reverend George Smith. The present minister is the Reverend Wil-
liam Heinselman.

‘There are 125 members of Westside Church of Christ, and the approximate Sunday attendance
isbetween 160 and 170. Besides these, there are 50 charter members. In addition to Mr. Heinsel
man, the church is run by four elders.

It is interesting to note that the music at Westside Church of Christ is entirely vocal, which
makes this a unique church in Bath Township.

The modern churches, as well as the old, make up a truly heterogeneous community, com-
posed of people of many faiths. Each church is unique in itself, and each is a valuable addition
to Bath Township, one its residents should take pride in.

Carol Ruschell
Phyllis Stecker
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Hiatory of Bath Township

Compiled by

Students in Senior Social Studies
Seminar Class, Revere Senior High School, May 1968

Printed by

Graphic Arts Department, Revere Senior High






index-48_1.jpg
HOMES & CROSSROADS

Since houses were the center of activity for rural, pioneer folk in the nineteenth and early
twentieth centuries, they were usually constructed for the needs and comforts of the family,
appearance being a minor concern, thus explaining the ofttimes awkward looking houses and
seemingly inconvenient passageways and rooms. The people of Bath during the eighteen hundreds
were mostly small farmers and built their houses accordingly. The room with the pot-bellied
stove was naturally the favorite because of the lack of central heating. Usually this was the kitch-
en or living room, though it could be any room in the house. Kitchens had wood cook stoves and
were very large in farm houses but not quite so big in later homes because they usually had a
dining room for the serving table. Living rooms varied with each house. Some houses didn’t have
any, while others had large living rooms with fireplaces or pot-bellied stoves for the whole family
to relax around after supper in the evenings. If there was a parlor it was reserved for company and
special events and contained the organ or piano if the family had one. The biggest problem
that many people have with old houses today is storage space. Closets and shelves weren’t nec-
essary for the farmers who had only three or four changes of clothing which they either put in-
to dressers, or hung on pegs for the next day’s use. Bedrooms were generally small mostly big
enough for only one bed and a chest of drawers. These early homes had no plumbing or elect-
ricity, hence the “out houses™ and kerosene lamps. Besides the kitchen, there was a pantry for
food storage which was always cool and a small cellar which was even colder than the pantry,
and in the winter was about the same temperature as a modern refrigerator. It was used for the
winter staples such as cheese, potatoes, canned goods, and apples.!

\ {4 | >

oy
Architecture

Local wood was used in building most of the old Bath homes and so long as it was solid, the
kind made no difference to the builders. Oak, ash, maple, and walnut were all used in these old
homes. Even today during remodeling carpenters and plumbers have a difficult time drilling
through these hand cut beams and planks. Wide floor boards, hand cut nails and axe marks on
beams are all typical of these antique houses. The foundations were made of sandstone blocks
about three feet long and one and a half feet square. Roofs were either hand split shingles or
slate shingle. Most of the houses had shutters which in the summer were shut with only the
louvers open to permit ventilation. Any present Bath resident who lives in one of these older
homes can testify to their sturdiness and strength.

One of the earliest structures of houses found in Bath was the Western Reserve style brought

Unterview with Mrs. Gertrude Steiner, February 16, 1968.
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and administrators of Bath School.

One unfortunate incident which is remembered by many, occured December 1, 1930. An ex-
plosion shook the school, and when the dust was cleared five students had been injured, they
were Ken Powers, Charles Codding, Jack McCausland, Harold McKisson and Bill Haser. The lat-
ter was killed by the explosion which was caused by coal dust, in the basement of the school.

On the happier side, there were many educational advances during the following years. Music
and Art were added to Bath’s curriculum during the 1930’s. It was arranged for through the aid
of the Medina schools, Medina teachers served the needs of the community of Bath until a sys-
tem of our own could be set up.2

In 1935, the first National Forensic League in our area was brought to Bath. With the spon-
sorship of Canton McKinley High School and the aid of Mr. Pugh, the National Forensic League
flourished. In 1949, Dick Caves won first place nationally in the National Voice of Democracy
contest for a speech which he wrote and delivered.

In 1949 plans for a consolidation of the Richfield and Bath school districts were begun. The
actual consolidation occurred a year later in 1950, and the blueprints for a new school were
started shortly there after. The name for the new school was to be Revere, and it would contain
the students of high school age from Richfield and Bath.

During the ion of Revere a very il ing system of schooling was adopted. In order
for the districts to be consolidated the students would have to go to the same school. Therefore,
it was proposed that the school day be divided in half and the students spend half the day at
Bath School and the other half at Richfield School. This system was obviously inconvenient but
the members of the school board believed that it was necessary. It was the general opinion of the
teachers that they would be able to teach much more if they could hold classes on the busses.*

o o

In January of 1953 Revere was founded and students began classes in the new building. At
this time, Mr. Roy Pugh was superintendent and Harold Schweisberger was principal. The first
class graduated from Revere with only forty-three people. This shows the very small size of the
school in its beginning. In 1953 the entire school had only 196 students while in 1958 it had
I1bid.

21bid.

3Mnterview, Mr. George Bayliss, Principal of Revere High School, March, 1968.

4Interview, Mrs. Virginia Ocasek. Latin teacher, Revere High School.
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Martin Road.

One square of the handiwork bore the name Hershey, another original and active family in
the community. Coming from Wayne County, Ohio, in 1848, the Hershey brothers Jacob, Abra-
ham, and Samuel were each interested in farming. To fulfill this purpose Jacob bought land
which extended from Cleveland-Massillon Road to Crystal Lake Road. His brother Abraham
bought a tract of land east of this and now the property of Everett Foote and John May. The
land on which Revere High School is located was the land that Samuel Hershey bought.

Another son of Jacob, John, acquired his father’s property, land which is now known as
Meadowpark and the Crystal Lake Farm. When he retired, his son George bought the land on
which he constructed from materials found on the property a dam which has formed Crystal Lake.
George, like his father, was also a successful farmer.

Otis Rice, another son of John was the propreitor of the Ghent General Store, which was de-
stroyed by fire in the 1950's. Otis was not only a storekeeper, but also Ghent postmaster and co-
operator of a flour mill along with his brother George on Yellow Creek. This was also destroyed
by fire.

Not only active in community affairs, the Hersheys also participated in church activities and
thus this name on the quilt block signifies one of the families responsible for helping to develop
Bath.

The Davis family was another of the early inhabitants whose name is on one quilt block.
William and Ann, the original members came to Bath in 1846 with their seven children. Two
other children were born in Bath. One of the sons, George S. Davis, married Mary Barker,

daughter of Jared Barker in 1873. Of their family of seven children, only three are living and only
one, Paul, lives in Bath. Although Mr. Davis once owned many acres of land. This property now
belongs to Raymond Firestone.?

As another of the early inhabitants of Bath whose name is embroidered on Mrs. Stein’s quilt,
Isaac Hopkins came to this community in 1814, settling between what is now Route 18 and Hame-
town Road, in the Springerest allotment. There on the property, he built a two-and-a-half story
Western Reserve house now owned and occupied by Carl Horn. The house was used as an under-
ground railway station before the Civil War. Married to Elizabeth Lee, Isaac and his wife reared
alarge family most of whom died in their youth.

One son Isaac, born in 1825, bought his father’s house and 100 acres in 1870. Before this time
Isaac, a partner with Jared Barker in the wagon and buggy-making business, with his family lived
ina log cabin near his place of employment. Unfortunately a flood in 1868 washed out the dam on
Yellow Creek, destroying business and necessitating a move to his father’s farm. Until his death,
Isaac operated a saw mill.

One of Isaac and Emily Briggs Hopkins’ children was Roswell Briggs born in 1873 several
months after his father’s death. Because Roswell’s mother died when he was seventeen, Roswell
lived with Loren Porter, the last Civil War veteran in Bath. An active member of the community,
Roswell Hopkins was a Bath School Board member for thirty years, a justice of the peace for
thirty years, and a director of Sharon Bank for twenty-five years. Mr. Hopkins also established a
large lumbering business in Bath and furnished the lumber for several of the community buildings
and in particular, the Ghent Church. Like his ancestors, he was a stalwart man, and a strong Re-
publican.

Roswell and his wife had four sons and four daughters, Cecil, Paul, Howard, and Ross, and

Unterview. Mrs. R. Hershey. May 1, 1968

2Interview. Mrs. Paul Davis. May 1, 1968. *
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known as Pancake Lock.

An ordinance that later ended the of the canal d the itions involved
in the retirement of the canal. This ordinance said that any section of the canal that was not used
for a period of one year was forfeited to its original owners.! After the evolution of and take-
over by the railroads, the preceding ordinances helped spell the end of the Ohio Canal.

The greatest problem with canal transportation arose from the fact that transportation by rail
was faster and much more convenient than the slow travel by canal boat. In 1910 the canal was
dredged out, but little or no traffic passed through it for the next three years. The canal was
finally ruined when, during the flood of 1913, large segments of its banks were washed away and
never replaced.

The people of Bath and surrounding areas played a part in Commadore Parry’s victory against
the British in Lake Erie on September 10, 1813. Three of Perry’s ships, The Portage, the Porcupine,
and the Hornet, were built in the vicinity of Bath on the Cuyahoga River. The ships were floated
down the river into Lake Erie where Parry used them in his battle. The bombarding and booming
of the engagement were so great that it has been said that the noise from the lake could be heard
by the people of Bath.

The second half of the nineteenth century was a boom time for the construction of railroads
all over the country. Almost everyone was advancing plans for the building of a dream railroad
that eventually would become only a dream. Bath experienced its own dream in 1853.

In that year there was a popular railroad known as the Clinton Line Railroad that connected
Hudson, Ohio with several eastern and northern points. An enterprising and ambitious man, Henry
N. Day, decided that it would be a good idea to build a ninety-four mile addition from the Hud-
son terminal to Tiffin, Ohio.

The railroad extension was to be known as the Clinton Air Line because of the novel idea
that part of the railway roadbed should be constructed “in the air” on top of a trestle. The com-
pany spent seventy-thousand dollars to plan and grade the roadbed through Northampton,
across the Cuyahoga near James Brown’s home, along the Yellow Creek Valley, through Ghent,
and on to Tiffin. The building of the railroad caused a temporary boom in Ghent, but when the
firm ran into financial difficulties and fell apart in 1865 the boom ended.

Although the first proposed railroad was the Clinton Extension, it was not until 1880 that
a railroad was actually constructed near Bath. The first railroad was called the Canton ‘Terminal
Valley (C.T.V.) Railroad because it ran north from Canton to Cleveland through the Cuyahoga
Valley. With the arrival of the C.T.V. Railroad Bath became a busy railroad center with easy ac-
cess to three depots located in Northampton. These three depots were located at Botzum, Ira,
and Everett; two of which were outfitted with a telegraph.

Although the larger Baltimore and Ohio Railroad did not buy the C.T.V. until 1906, the
traffic on the Canton Terminal Valley made Bath an important rail stop. This path by way of
Bath was made increasingly important as people moved west because all of the passenger traffic
from Cleveland to Chicago had to go by way of Akron. This meant that the trains had to go south
by way of the Valley Railroad and then west on the Baltimore and Ohio. This path is only thir-
teen miles longer than a track running along the Lake Erie shore. Through the busy Valley Rail-
road, Bath was given early access to the benefits of travel and trade that only a railroad can bring
a community. Understandingly, after the great invasion of the railroad the canal traffic slowly
dropped until in 1913 the canal was abandoned.

ISamuel A. Lane, Fifty Years and over of Akron and Summit County (Akron:Beacon Job
Department, 1892), p. 78.

21bid., pp. 242-243.
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people of Bath - except for the backyard gardeners - no longer rise at dawn to milk cows or gather
eggs or get to the planting o tilling. But they may rise early to get to a job in town.

But old-time neighborliness has not disappeared. People and people everywhere, and the spirit
of people has changed less, probably, in Bath than has anything else.

Eleanor Viall
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BATH SESQUICENTENNIAL - 1968
Program

SUNDAY  July7-  Churches throughout the Township
will have special observances

Horse Show (second day of show) Bob-O-Lin Farm
Crowning of Sesqui Queen at Intermission

MONDAY  July 8-  Little Leauge Baseball Revere Field
Special Baseball Game Revere Field
Beard Growing Contest Winners ~ Revere Field

*TUESDAY July9-  Grange Old Fashioned Picnic Hale Homestead

Concert - Bath School Bands Hale Homestead
THURSDAY July 11- Square Dance Eastview Basketball
Court
FRIDAY July 12-  Ice Cream Social Bath United Church
of Christ
SATURDAY July 13- Open House and Tea - Bath School
Reception for Bath Alumni
Antique Exhibit Bath Town Hall

(artifacts and memorabilia)
Parade (from Bethel Lutheran
Church to Revere Stadium)
to be formed

to start parade

Pageant Revere Stadium
SUNDAY July 14-  Church Observances

Antique Exhibit (second day) Bath Town Hall

Historical Tour of Bath center fold in Bath
History

Antique Exhibit of Cars Hale Homestead

Lawn Fete Ghent Christian
Church

Special features: Souvenir Programs
Special notepaper, souvenir plates

1:00 p.m.

6:30 p.m.
8:30 pm.

6:00 p.m.
7:30 pm.

7:30-
10:30 p.m.

6:00-
10:00 p.m.

1:00-
5:00 p.m.

10:00 a.m.
9:00 p.m.

6:30 pm.
7:00 p.m.

8:30 p.m.
(tentative)

10:00 a.m.
9:00 p.m.

1:00 pm.

12:30-
5:00 p.m.

*Please remind everyone attending the picnic and band concert on Tuesday to bring blankets to

use during the concert.

In case of rain, picnic, band concert, square dance and pageant will be held in Eastview School.
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EARLY SETTLERS IN BATH

As illegal settlers or “squatters” will go to any new territory, squatters came to Bath, then
called Wheatfield. The Majority of Bath Township was sold to Jason Hammond and Jonathan
Hale; however, before either of these men came to Bath, squatters moved onto their property.
Torid themselves of the squatters, Hale and Hammond paid them small amounts; consequently,
they paid for their land twice.

The most renowned of these squatters were the Miller brothers, Morris and Aaron. Arriving
in 1810 these brothers chose as their property Lot 11, which was on Oak Hill Road.! This
property belonged to Jonathan Hale. Here the Millers erected a small log cabin and raised crops,
mistakenly thinking it was rightfully theirs. The Millers then travelled to a lot which is now
known as Stony Hill. At Stony Hill the Millers established one of the early roads in Bath Town-
ship, North Hametown Road, by cutting down the trees that grew in abundance there.2
Today, the Edward Steins, descendants of these Millers, live on the Miller property on Stony
Hill where they operate one of the few farms in Bath.

Another famous squatter was Moses Latta, who settled on a lot near present Smith Road.
This area, the corner of Routes 18 and 21 became known as Latta’s Corners. Moses’ son, William,
erected and ran an infamous tavern on this property. This area was later renamed Ellis Corners
and it is now known as Montrose.

There were other squatters who came to Bath during the spring of 1810, too. Most of them
came to hunt and trap, but all of them came to make improvements on the land. A few of these
carly squatters were Hezekiah Burdit, Moses and Aaron Decker, and Gipson Gates.4 These
squatters began their start in Bath on two primary areas: the rightful property of Jonathan Hale
and Jason Hammond.

Another very beneficial squatter in Bath Township was William Cogswell. Cogswell was an
expert hunter who lived in Bath for a great many years. He helped to start the building of many
of the roads in Bath.5

Although several squatters settled in Bath before Jonathan Hale, he was the first legal settler.
Coming to Bath in 1810 from Glastonbury, Connecticut, Jonathan had purchased lots 11, 12,
13, and part of 14 in Bath from the Connecticut Land Company. Jonathan and his family were
surprised to find a squatter on their property. Jonathan Hale was not angered, though, by this
trespassing; he was pleased that Aaron Miller had saved him the time and trouble of building a
cabin. As payment, Jonathan gave Aaron Miller his horse and wagon and the Hales and Millers
parted as friends when the Millers left the Hale property to move to Montrose. Although the
Millers were squatters on Hale’s property, they were actually legal settlers in Bath; because of
misreading the surveyor’s lines, they had mistakenly settled on Hale’s land.

Jonathan and his family lived in the Miller cabin for fifteen years until 1825 when Jonathan

Unterview. Mrs. Alleen Stein, February 16, 1968.
2Ibid.

3William Henry Perrin, History of Summit County (Chicago:Baskins & Battey, Historical
Publishers, 1881), p. 619.

4Ibid., p. 619.

Sibid., p. 619.
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from Connecticut which was usually simplified. Its features were small siding, small window
panes, paneled entrance doors, a closed entrance or porch and single boards running up the sides
of the house immitating the pilasters of the Greek Revival house with a lentel at the top. Later
the Victorian and Edwardian houses became common with their many gables and turrets. Nearer
the turn of the century many frame houses were built which still retained many of the character-
istics of the earlier homes.

A description of a few of these older homes which are still standing will be of interest to the
residents in this sesquicentennial year of 1968. Here are a selected number (some with pictures
to show them in earlier years as well as now) which will be described by geographical location
starting with the Hale Homestead. !

Hale Homestead

One of the oldest and most interesting of the old homes is the Jonathan Hale Homestead on
Ok Hill Road. From clay and lime found on the property, Jonathan began to build his home
out of brick in the year 1826. It is interesting to note that the original brick was of poor quality
because of impurities in the clay. Decades later much of this brick had to be replaced.

Upon completion in 1830, the house consisted of a large basement with two fireplaces, a
parlor and bedroom on the first floor, and two bedrooms on the second. Immediately after the
main part of the home was completed, work began on a large split-level dining room behind the
original structure. During these years the rapid increase in size of Jonathan’s family necessitated
the subdivision of the two second floor bedrooms into four small rooms. Later, when the child-
ren had married or moved away the partitions were removed. The five mantels in the home, al-
though similar to thousands of mantels built in the early houses of the Western Reserve, have
beaded ornaments in the panels at the top and each side which makes them very rare.

Later, a north wing was added and installed in the rear of this was a small guest room. Although
the original house probably did not have a porch, Jonathan built a small Victorian porch which
was later replaced by the present one.

After Andrew’s death, part of the property was inherited by his son, Charles Oviatt Hale, and
the rest of the property was bought from the heirs by him. In 1938, following “C.0.’s” death,
the house and grounds were inherited by his neice, Miss Clara Belle Ritchie. She and her brother
Ned had a great interest in the Western Reserve heritage and together repaired much of the dam-
age done by years of neglect. At Miss Ritchie’s death in 1956, she bequeathed the house and

Interview with Helen Douglas, March 14, 1968.
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In 1868 the Bath Township Trustees enacted a state resolution that called for the establish-
ment of road districts and for the appointment of a road supervisor to each district. Bath esta-
blished eight districts in 1868, but in later years this number fluctuated between two and twenty-
seven.

The old covered bridge on the corner of Everett and Oak Hill Roads is one of the most out-
standing points of historical interest still intact within the vicinity. Although this bridge is not
situated within Bath Township, we mention it because it is one of the few bridges of similar con-
struction still in existence in Ohio, and it is the only one left in Summit County. It is one-hundred
and fifteen feet long and was constructed out of seven by ten inch timbers. These massive tim-
bers account: for the long and useful life of this structure.

The turn of the century brought several new and revolutionary conveniences to Bath. These
included the automobile and the paved road. The first automobiles in Bath were not owned by
any of the residents of Bath, but they were noticed by everyone. These motor powered “buck-
boards” used to travel into Bath in groups of twelve on test runs. During these runs the men
would always stop at the old cider mill in Ghent for refreshment.

‘The first car to be owned by a resident of Bath was owned by Roswell Hopkins. He brought
a white Stanley Steamer in 1910 that was the object of many inquisitive looks from the pessi-
mestic members of the community. Another person who had one of the first cars was Dr. Bear
from Hammond’s Corners. Dr. Bear’s car, the first in Bath with an internal combustion engine,
was a small noisy “buckboard” that he used for housecalls during good weather.

The new cars that were starting to roll into the township required an improvement in the
conditions of the always bumpy and usually muddy roads. The feasibility of improving and pav-
ingall of the roads in Bath was considered seriously when in 1916 the township and county paved
Route 176. Soon after many other roads were paved, including Granger Road and Route 21.
Common paving materials at this time were brick and crushed stone or slag.

Another transportation landmark was passed in 1910 when the township gave permission to
Standard Oil Company to ol the roads at Hammond’s Corners. This appears to be the first use of
oil for dust control in Bath.

The period from 1910 to the present has demonstrated the greatest growth in our road sys-
tem. Paving, oiling, lighting, street marking, and construction of roads have each been carried
out at a greatly increased tempo as the township grows and as its needs increase.

The depression and the resulting governmental attempts toward the recovery of our nation’s
economy fed to the establishment of the Works Projects Administration. (W.P.A.) This program
created many new jobs for unemployed men. Some of the men involved with this program in
this area helped to construct and maintain our roads and bridges. Some of the projects which
were undertaken included the construction of a bridge on Crystal Lake Road, and the reconstruc-
tion of Martin Road.

‘The wages of 1935 and 1940 that were paid for road construction were very small in relation
to today’s high construction and repair costs. In 1935 it was passed during a township meeting
that the road superintendent should receive 45 cents per hour, and that a common laborer
should receive 35 cents per hour. As the years progress the superintendent and workmen re-
ceived a large raise so that by 1940 the superintendent was receiving SO cents per hour, and the
workmen were given 40 cents per hour.

In any new allotment or on any road that is surfaced with slag, gravel, or limestone, one al-
ways finds that a dust problem arises. July 5, 1943 marked another first in the area of dust con-
trol. On this date, the township authorized the County Engineer to spread, for the first time in
Bath, the dust controlling compound calcium chloride in front of all the homes situated along
township roads.
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The Watson Home

The exact date of the building of what is now the Glen O. Watson home on Cleveland-Massillon
Road is not known, but when the Watsons bought the home from the R. E. Mantons in 1943,
it was said to be over 100 years old. The house sits on a hill about 200 yards south from the Bath
Fire Station. The farm originally had 360 acres, but now consists of 37.

The Abe Stuuffer Home

The Abe Stauffer home on North Cleveland-Massillon Road (see map) is an excellent example
of the Greek Revival type of architecture found in the Western Reserve.

The McKisson Home

The McKisson home first stood across from the fire station on old Route 21, and was the

original town hall. Although the date the house was built is not certain, it was probably built in

the 1850’s. Around 1906, the house was moved to its present site, about 150 yards south down
the road from its original site. It is now more directly across from the Watson home. (see map)

The Garth Andrew Company

The first building to stand where the Garth Andrew Company is now located (not the original
building) was owned and operated by Joseph Whitcraft. He bought the general store from Ries
Randolph in 1877, and ran it until 1888, when he died, and the business was handed over to his
son, Sigel B. Whitcraft, who was 25 years old.

Sigel’s general store was the second largest store, owned by one man, in the state. Customers
came from four counties to lay in supplies for a week, or a month.!

Mr. Whitcraft was known for his generosity and big-heartedness and was greatly admired by
all who knew him. There is an interesting story that illustrates his great generosity to all those
he came in contact with.

A rather poor old woman, who was in need of money, churned and made her own butter to

1Akron Times-Press, Sunday, January 12, 1936.
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EARLY HISTORY
TOPOGRAPHY, GEOGRAPHY, & GEOLOGY

Is there a resident of Bath Township today who has not mused to himself, “I wonder how
these hills, valleys and lakes came to be?” This short history has tried to answer this question.

The surface of Bath is greatly diversified and has taken its final form as the result of several
causes. The first formative influence was aerial erosion. More than fifty million years ago,! when
the land was lifted above the ocean to an elevation above the present level, it remained for
many ages subject to erosion, until canyons over one thousand feet deep were cut through the
rtocks.

Because these canyons eroded, the rock surface between them was disintegrated and a soil
formed which was capable of sustaining a forest vegetation, but becaus it lacked some mineral
ingredients, it was not the most productive soil. The deep canyons produced such effective drain-
age that it interfered with continued fertility and left a barren rock surface in many places near
the canyons.

The second formative influence producing the present topography was the glacier from the
North which filled the canyons, widened out their upper parts into valleys, and crushed the
rock surfaces. It moved slowly over the surface of the state with the pressure of a mass of ice
several thousand feet thick and left upon the surface of Bath a thick deposit of unstratified clay
drift containing fragments of all the local rocks mingled with the mineral rocks brought down
by the glacier from the North.

The waters flowing from the retreating glacier carried away most of the clay, ground the rest
into sand and left many swamps and lakes on the surface filled with ground ice. There were four
such ice invasions, the last one ending about 18,000 years ago and leaving a marked impression
upon the topography of Bath because lakes and lakelets covered much of the surface. Water
from the hills silted up the bottoms of these lakes and deepened their outlets; renewed vegetation
flourished and converted the shallower ones into swamps.

The greater part of Bath today is extremely rough and precipituous. The central and northern
portions are not as rough and irregular as the rest. But the eastern third of the township, over-
hanging the valley of the Cuyahoga River, is largely composed of hills and deep gullies and the
land along the va.l}.?' of Yellow Creek is divided into innumerable bluffs and hills of all shapes,
sizes, and altitudes.

1“United States of America”, Encyclopaedia Britannica, (Chicago:William Benton, 1966),
XXII, 719.

2Glacier”, Ibid., X, 440.

3samuel A. Lane, Fifty Years and Over of Akron and Summit County, (Akron:Beacon Job
Department, 1892), pp. 614-615.

4bid., p. 640.

SWilliam Henry Perrin (ed.), History of Summit County, (Chicago:Baskin and Battey,
Historical Publishers, 1881), p. 617.
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sold it to Spafford Brothers. In 1860, Alonzo Coffin bought if from a James Meyers and ran it
until he moved to Akron in 1875. He produced cloth, woolen blankets, yarns, flannels, satinets,
cassimeres, and coverlets, an annual output of 10,000 pounds from fleece from area settlers’
sheep.! Henry Pardee was the next owner of the mill, and he became known for a process he
used in manufacturing waterproof goods, called the “Hammerstain process;” “‘His superior way
of preparing waterproof goods made the fabric waterproof on both sides and at the same time
impervious to heat or cold.”2 Pardee in turn passed the mill to Chester Purdy, who converted it
into amachine shop. Mr. Purdy’s nephew, Henry C. Freeman, and his wife were the next owners,
and they converted the old mill into apartments. When the Freemans came in 1892, there was
still much of the mill remaining both inside and outside. Outside in the creek were the remains
of & large over shot waterwheel and a flume. Inside were drawers and shelves used for stocking.
Mrs. Freeman, describing the condition of the mill in 1942, noted, “In parts of the old store-
room oil from the wool had saturated the plaster to such an extent we had to remove it. We had
to alter the mill greatly to make it into a residence, so that much of the interior no longer the
once busy mill.” The Freemans passed the mill on to their daughter, Mrs. Walter Grosh, and
her husband, Rev. Grosh. In all, between 1860 and 1874, the mill was sold nine times and it was
sold four times in 1886.4

There are still remains of the old water shaft and the mill flume in the creek at the back of the
mill. Inside, the inch thick floors in the machine rooms are worn down where the workers stood
at the machines. The mill bought the fleece, washed, carded, spun, and then wove it into cloth.
Acrane was used to lift the fleece upstairs from the wagons below. The foundation is of cut stone
and supports the 84 by 24 foot structure. The windows are each made of 20 panes of hand-rolled

1William Perrin, History of Summit County (Chicago: Baskin and Battey, 1881.)
2Akron Times Press, op. cit.

3B. F. Goodrich Circle, September, 1942, p. 22.

4Cleveland Plain Dealer, May 12, 1953, “Oldest Woolen Mill in Ghent”.
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CHURCHES

Religion forms an important sector of life in every community. Indeed, Bath Township read-
ily supports this generalization: even before being first settled, a Moravian missionary, John Heck-
ewelder, had established numerous posts in the Cuyahoga River area.l Although Indian colonies
were Heckewelder’s destination, the need for religion among the wilderness settlers was easily
tecognized. Circuit riders most probably circulated in the northern Summit county area several
years before Bath was initially inhabited. The early 1800’s, though, marked the gradual down-
fall of the circuit rider and missionary’s function. Most settlers began to request a church, how-
ever crude, to be erected, served by a permanent minister. This wish was first realized in Bath in
1832.

Coming into existence about 1818, the church with the longest background is Bath United
Church of Christ.2 Today located at 3980 West Bath Road, this church has acquired both an
interesting and unusual history throughout its 150 years.

The approximated date for the initial building of the simple “Bath Church” is 1818. Con-
structed of logs and situated on the site occupied by the Town Hall today, the church was founded
by a small group of settlers cognizant of their religious needs. Instrumental in the first efforts to
organize Bath Church were the Jason Hammonds, one of the original families to inhabit the town-
ship. The Encyclopedia Britannica mentions Eleanor Hammond, Jason’s sister-in-law, as one of
the founders of this early church. With acreage sufficient for a meeting-house and cemetery do-
nated by Ezekial Williams, the plans for a church became a reality. A permanent minister and a
firm organization for the church, however, were lacking, a condition not corrected until 1832.

In 1832, three missionaries serving the Summit County area formed a temporary council in
the log church at Bath Center. The result was a decision to place the small congregation under
the care of the Presbyrtery of Huron. Simeon Woodruff was appointed the first minister. Only
eleven years following this action, the growth of the church warranted a larger building. Under
the authority of Mr. Theodore Hammond, a son of Jason Hammond, a new structure was erected
on the original location obtained from Ezekial Williams. Completed in 1834, this structure today
serves as the sanctuary of the modern Bath Church.3

UHorton, John J., The Jonathan Hale Farm, A Chronical of the Cuyahoga Valley, Publication
No. 116, The Western Reserve Historical Society, Cleveland, Ohio, 1961.

2“History of Bath Church,” Eulalia E. Plank, 1949.

3ibid.
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from Richfield played. The bandstand was located at Black’s Grove, 4317 Granger Road, where
Mr. and Mrs. Authur Mayer now live. (The place later became a sugar house.) There were games
contests, visiting politicians, and many kinds of good food at this picnic.

Hammond’s Corners

s Corners was an i center in Bath. Generally the area east of the cross-
roads was the Hershey Farm. It is now central Bath. There was an old inn, The Landmark Inn,
located where the First National Bank now stands. It was originally a stage-coach stop and an inn
for travellers. The Whitcraft Store was the largest building at the corners. This site now houses
Garth Andrew’s Interior Decorating company. The home of Ted Woods includes what is left of
the original Hershey Farm. The house which is now the Weathervane Shop was built early in

nterview with Mr. Clair Alexander, February 16, 1968.
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GOVERNMENT

There are 17,198 township governments in the United States.! This is the story of one of

them. The region which is now known as Bath wasn’t officially owned by the government until
the Treaty of Fort Industry in 1805.2 The first permanent settlers, Jonathan Hale and Jason
Hammond, came five years later, and eight years after that, in 1818, the township was officially
or .
The history behind the township’s name is an interesting story in itself. The area had originally
been known as simply Number 3, Range 12, of the Western Reserve, but this was superceded by
Wheatfield, and then Hammondsburgh, after one of the early settlers.4 The question of a new
name then came up at one of the town meetings; but discussion dragged on and was seemingly
endless. Finally Jonathan Hale, another early settler, rose and exclaimed, “O, call it Jerusalem,
Jericho, Bath, or anything but Hammondsburght”S The motion was quickly passed and the
township adopted the name of Bath, which, if nothing else, placed it first in the alphabetical
listing of the county townships.

The township government was patterned after the local form of government with which the
settlers had been familiar in Connecticut and the other New England states. Three trustees, a
clerk, and a justice of the peace served as the elected officials. The early township records have
been lost, and only one of these first officials has been positively identified, This is Dr. Henry
Hutson, who served as the first Justice of the Peace.6 The first constable, who was appointed by
the trustees, was Eleazer Rice.” Partial records have shown that Jonathan Hale and Jason Ham-
mond were early trustees, but the exact dates of their terms of office are not known.

‘The first constable, Eleazer Rice, was also involved in the first case of assault in the township.
Eleazer was small in stature and not well liked. Two men, Lewis Hammond and Isaiah Fowler,
had tipped over Eleazer’s sled as a practical joke. They were summoned to appear before the
Justice of the Peace, but upon reaching the outside of his house and seeing Eleazer, they lost
their courage and took off in opposite directions. Eleazer unfortunately chose to chase the larger
of the two, Lewis Hammond. When he cuaght up with him he leaped on his back, but Hammond,
undaunted by the additional weight, continued running. When last seen he was still galloping
through the woods.?

Unterview. Mr. John E. Warner, March 7, 1968.

2William Henry Perrin (ed.), History of Summit County, (Chicago: Baskin and Battey, His-
torical publishers, 1881) p. 618.

31bid., p. 620.

4Samuel A. Lane, Fifty Years and Over of Akron and Summit County, (Akron: Beacon Job
Department, 1892) p. 644.

Stbid., p. 644.

6William Henry Perrin (ed.), History of Summit County, (Chicago: Baskin and Battey, His-
torical publishers, 1881) p. 620.

7ibid., p. 620.
8Lane, op. cit., p. 644-5.

Perrin, op. cit. p. 620-1.
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The seven sole proprietors of Bath hired Rial McArthur and R. Warden to survey the town-
ship into lots of roughly 160 acres apiece. Rial McArthur, who lived in the next township, North-
ampton, knew the value of the land in this area and named the township Wheatfield, its first
name.

In April, 1810, Thomas Bull grew short of money and became eager to dispose of his western
lands. In June he wrote the following letter to Kirtland, a trustee of the lands:

“Dear Sir—I have sold to Mr. Jason Hammond in Township 3, 12th Range in the Reserve
Eleven hundred acres of land and also to Mr. Jonathan Hale Five Hundred acres of the same
town in exchange for property in this state. T. Bull P.S. I shall soon dispose of all my lands in
this township—Should Mr. [Theodore] Hammond meet with any misfortune on his route
his father is very able and you may rest assured will pay any expense should it be necessary
and wanted.”2

Iibid., p. 17.
21bid., p. 29.

Cathy Morstatter
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Sigel B. Whitcraft died in 1934, and the store went to Ava Andrew, his daughter. She, in turn,
Ieft it to Garth, her son.

The Garth Andrew Company started approximately 20 years ago in an old remodeled barn,
and the main building was leased to Harold Caylor. He kept it as a general store, and ran a post
office in one corner. The Garth Andrew Company eventually moved into this building from the
barn, ending the general store. The post office moved out about four or five years ago into the
building across the street, and the general store-post office was no more.

The Harmon Cranz Home

The Harmon Cranz home, located southeast on Ira Road between the Hale-Hammond ceme-
tery and the Old Trail School entrance, was originally the Himmond home. It was built before
the Hale by the and nei ing families with wood from the property.
Erected in 1826 or 1827 the house was finished in two sections; the first in the 1820’s and the
second in the 1830’s. It has not been determined which, the front or back, was built first.

The Jason Hammond family first lived with a “squatter” family who had settled and partially
cleared the land. They lived there during the building of their own home. This went rather slow-
ly for supplies had to be brought from Tallmadge and Hudson. (Prices of goods, especially nails,
which were at a premium, went down when the canal was built through this area in 1827-30.)1

William Cranz, Harmon’s grandfather, bought a quarter section (160 acres) from the Ham-
monds in 1863. This land included the house. Mr. Cranz came from Holmes County, Ohio.

The original frame of the house still stands, but the house has been completely remodeled.
What is now the fireplace of the home was originally the bake oven, the base of which still re-
mains in the basement. The garage was originally a wood shed that had been attached to the
house.

Of the two barns now on Harmon’s property, the middle barn was built in 1884, and the left-
hand barn was moved to its present spot when the house was built.

‘The first fields were cleared by the “squatters”; the graveyard next to the house includes graves
of both the Hammonds and the Hales.

The Underwood House

The Underwood home on Everett Road (see map) was built during the 1860’ or 70’s. It was
owned driginally by the Underwoods, then the Newmans and now the Hissongs. In 1966 the
Bath Players purchased the barn on this property and it is now a playhouse for their productions.
known as the Town Barn.

The house itself has been completely redone several times. An unusual feature of this house
is the storm cellar which Mr. Underwood built for his wife’s use after she lost her voice when
struck by lightning during an electrical storm. This cellar was dug below the original one and it
issaid that she would go there to stay during electrical storms.

Interview with Mrs. E. H. Steffen, March 31, 1968.

Nancy Fulton
Lee Ann Steffen
Betsy Rea
Angela Gervais
Carol Miller
Rachel Smith
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The rallying cry of the several garden clubs is that all should “Keep Bath Beautiful!” These
ladies with green thumbs have rendered many services to the community, including the promo-
tion of widespread junior garden programs, and a great deal of plantings at schools and along the

KEEP BATH

BEAUTIFUL

EATH GARDEN CLUBS

highways over the years. There is still a Grange organization, and a chapter of the Farm Bureau.
The i iation runs the ive Little League baseball program and the Re-
vere Booster Club expends most of its energies and funds contributing to school athletics and
activities. Volunteers for Service, a large group of women, raise funds for the local fire depart-
‘ment annually, It was the driving force behind the Library originally, and does much to aid the
school administration when called upon. Bath Players sustains a continuing interest in dramatics
for childrer and adults alike and has its own converted barn playhouse. Band Parents do much
to enrich the school music programs.

The Jonathan Hale homestead is a museum now, maintained by the Western Reserve Histori-
cal Society, and it attracts thousands of visitors in season. A museum village is being assembled
on a green nearby from a collection of old homes and buildings moved there and positioned to
simulate a settlement of old.

The ancient Yellow Creek Mill on Granger Road is still maintained in fine condition, distin-
guished by the enduring tall old silos and the huge water wheel; however, its operation has been
updated. The covered bridge still carries traffic between Bath and Boston townships and is con-
sidered a real treasure (the single one remaining in the County) and a favorite subject for artists’
endeavors, especially on fine Sunday mornings.

Bath, then, is a community continuously growing and changing. There is much that is new,
and yet enough of the old to retain a distinct nostalgic charm for those interested in history. The
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sell to S. B., for him to sell to his customers. It is said that while he was paying her for her ex-
tremely rancid butter in the front of the store, he had men out back burying it because it was so
bad, and never a word was said about the transaction.

The original building was burned down in February, 1912, and along with it went an estim-
ated $75,000 worth of stock. Mrs. Ethel Griffin remembers the fire vividly. There had just been
a deep snow, and everyone, including the inhabitants of the store was asleep. (Ralph Andrew,
who was Garth Andrew’s father, Ralph’s wife, Ava Andrew, who was S. B.’s daughter, S. B. Whit-
craft, and his wife Elva Whitcraft lived in the upper story of the building.) Mrs. Griffin was
sleeping over at a friend’s house because the deep snow prohibited travel, and the house was
right down the road from the general store. The hostess had risen at about 5 a.m. to put more
coal on the stove, and she noticed that the whole sky was light. The two women realized at once
what the trouble was.

There was no fire department to speak of at that time, and they had to watch the store burn
to the ground. Even if there had been a fire department the deep snow would have made it
impossible to be effective.

The store was rebuilt in the same year it burned down, 1912. All the neighbors shared in the
rebuilding, and local carpenters built the new store. Lumber, mostly oak, was furnished by Hop-
kin’s Mill.
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BATH ACTIVITIES

A history of this township could not possibly be completed without a short review of the ac-
tivities and organizations which have made Bath a warm, friendly community during all the
years of its existence.

The Macabee Hall which sat in the triangle in Ghent until it was replaced by the El Mar Res-
taurant in recent years was long the scene of joyful community gatherings. Oyster suppers,
square dances and lodge meetings kept the hall busy constantly. The ladies group is now known
as Women’s Benefit Association and still meets monthly in homes. The annual 4th of July Mac-
abee picnic was an important event. A number of other important groups should be mentioned
along with the Macabees. The King’s was one ization which i from 1886
until the early 1900’s. They were noted for true Christian iving.!

The Stoney Hill Farm Women’s Club is the oldest women’s club still in existence. Its aim has
been to render service to neighbors, school and community; today it aids the ill or grief stricken
and helps at weddings and births. It was organized in 1912 with Ida Porter as its first president
and Allie H. Fryman first secretary. Its motto is “To do good where needed.”

Until World War I, the activity year revolved around these annual events:

September, around the 10th - the Annual Pioneer Picnic was held in Black’s Grove to com-
memorate Perry’s victory on Lake Erie (referred to earlier in chapter on industry). Black’s
Grove at the corner of Hametown and Granger Roads was the scene of this event for over 75
years. Jared Barker was the president of the picnic for over fifty years and Allie Hopkins Fry-
man was the secretary. Picnic goers came from neighboring townships to listen to Frank Gold-
wood lead the drum and fife corp or to hear other bands perform on a wooden platform in the
center of the grove.

There was always a huge crock of lemonade available all day, while farm wives “furnished an
abundance of good food.” Local and state politicians used the occasion as a grass roots sounding
board. Games were always planned and played by all age groups.2

January - A farmer’s Institute, organized and carried out by the State Department of Agri-
culture, was held in the Town Hall. It was an all day affair with morning, afternoon and evening
sessions. The school children were excused from classes to attend and to give a “performance™
at one of these sessions.

June- An alumni banquet was held at the school for many years. Strawberry festivals abounded
in every organization throughout the township.

July 4th - The annual Macabee Picnic.

August - For well over 50 years the end of August brought all the former residents back for
the annual Bath Homecoming held at the school. This attracted residents of all ages and lasted all
afternoon and evening.

These events occured each year without fail until the 1940’s or 1950’s when most of them
were discontinued. A Bath Community Council was organized and served well during this time.

The organized interest of parents in the schools gave birth to the Bath PTA which started in
1920 before the consolidated 12 year school moved into the brick building which is now Bath
Elementary School. Mrs. I. R. Manton was the first president.

The Booster’s Club was organized at Bath School before the consolidation which formed
Revere. It is 15 years old. Its purpose has always been to promote the schools of Bath.

Iinterview, Mrs. Alleen Stein.

2bid.
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BATH TODAY

There is much of the old physical beauty left in Bath today. The lovely rolling hills remain,
the flowing, picturesque lttle creeks, the wide, open fields and the wooded ravines. At certain
points the view over the whole of the Cuyahoga valley is sweeping and awesome.

But the community is in the transition from rural hamlet to suburb. Nearly all of the farms
are gone, and the many families who have moved to the Township in the last decade have come
not to make their living from the soil, but to establish homes with space around them and thus
escape the pressures and problems of the cities.

The 1960 census stated the population of Bath Township as just over 4600 people. Today
there are about 6500 people. Projected population for 1970 is estimated at something like 7100.

The schools in the Revere (Bath-Richfield consolidated) district have tripled in student popu-
lation in the last dozen years, reflecting the increasing influx of new families. Every year a great-
er number of students in all grades, amounting to 100 to 150 boys and girls, enter the three ele-
mentary schools and Eastview Junior High and Revere Senior High. Many of them, of course,
live in Richfield, but right now Bath is growing much faster.

There is another school now in the community, Old Trail, privately operated, which was
built during the last two years and opened its doors in September, 1967. Old Trail was formerly
located in Fairlawn, outgrew itself, and was moved to Bath when a donation of land was made
available to the administration.

The traces of antiquity can be seen everywhere. There are many old homes which have been
kept in good condition. Also, accompanying many of these are old barns to remind us that the
Township was agricultural. One of Ohio’s largest general stores was also located in Bath and served
as the trading center for a much broader agricultural area.

But the venerable homes have been modernized, and there are in many directions large tracts
of handsome new ones. Iradale is perhaps the oldest development of all, an extensive grouping
of large and attractive houses in handsome settings; in many ways a community within a com-
munity. The homes in the Bonnebrook-Walnut Ridge section are similarly elegant.

In the southwestern part of the Township are the allotments of Harmony Hills and Spring-
crest, developed in the last few years and featuring more luxury homes on sizeable acreages.
Meadow Park, not far from Bath School, is similarly well laid-out and handsomely situated.
Adjacent to Fairlawn Village there are other allotments: Revere Woods, Hilary Heights, and more.
To the east of Ghent Road are the houses in the West Point-Rotunda area. Perhaps the newest
of all is the deluxe allotment on a vast hill overlooking Yellow Creek Road where it meets Re-
vere called Oak Knolls, and a short distance east of that is another handsome settlement, Short
Hills.

Bath boasts its own post office, safety building, and branch bank, as well as strips or clusters
of small business i along Cleveland-Massillon Road, in Montrose and in Ghent.
The old general store is now a contemporary-furnishings emporium. There are several antique
shops and at least two fine restaurants. Various religions are represented in the half-dozen or
more churches of Bath. The Branch Library is small but excellent.

Also within the boundaries of the Township is a large summer camp for young people, oper-
ated by the Catholic Youth Organization, Camp Christopher; and a private golf course, Bath
Golf Course, which has proved very popular. Tennis courts and baseball diamonds around the
schools, and pools and lakes on private property are well-used. Recreation outdoors, with plenty
of space, is a prime objective of people who leave the cities for country living. Many dwellers
keep horses; theres even a regularly-scheduled fox-hunt across the park-like acres of Raymond
Firestone, when ladies and gentlemen in traditional pink coats ride to hounds.
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Most roads were named through the use of a place-to-place symbolism. Examples would in-
clude the Doylestown-Richfield Road (Medina Line Road), Bath-Stow-Kent Road (Bath Road),
and Granger-Ghent Road (Granger Road). Some of the roads were described by the name of a
corner or landmark to a place. The most outstanding examples of this symbolism includes Os-
born Corners-Everett Road (Everett Road), Hammond’s Corners-Ira Road (Ira Road), and Cro-
ton House, Richfield Road (Revere Road).

Neither the canals nor the railroads are within the confines of Bath Township, but since they
are only three-hundred yards from the township, they did play an important part in our com-
munity’s past growth and development.

The advent of the Ohio canal, passing near Bath, was of great importance to the economic
structure of the community. This canal was opened from Cleveland to Akron in 1827 and by
1830it was completed to the Ohio River. Water and water transportation have always been con-
sidered among the cheapest and most efficient methods for the transport of especially large and
heavy cargoes. Thus the canal opened to farmers a cheap and efficient means of sending their
produce to markets that were impossible to reach beforehand. One of the settlers who collected
immediate benefit from the canal was Jonathan Hale. Hale used the canal to send his wool,
whiskey, mixed and refined lime, and other products to destinations as far away as New York.

The canal not only helped the farmer directly through cheaper access to markets, but it also
helped him and his family to travel easier than had ever before been possible. This idea was dem-
onstrated several years after the opening of the canal by Mercy and Jonathan Hale who returned
to revisit their home in G ic icut. To journey to G they took a canal
packet to Cleveland, a schooner to Buffalo and a wagon to Connecticut.! This was the normal
series of steps taken when shipping or traveling to the East.

Included within the interesting details of the building of the canal is the story of the Irish
workers. When the canal was begun thousands of Irishmen, who were driven from their homes
to America due to a potato famine in Ireland, found their way into canal construction gangs. The
hard work, the wet and dirty surroundings, and their lack of immunity allowed typhoid fever to kill
many of the Irish workmen. These expended workers were buried in any convenient spot; some
of them were buried in Hale Cemetery near Hale Homestead. So many were buried in unmarked
graves that it is not unusual today to uncover a shovel of remains when digging new graves in
Hale Cemetery.2

Three of the best known locks on the Ohio Canal near Bath are the locks numbered 26, 27,
and 28. Lock number 26 is located just south of the intersection of Ira and Riverview Roads.
This lock was known to the early inhabitants of Bath as the Mud Catcher Lock as a result of its
tendency to collect mud and sediment from the canal. The locks numbered 27 and 28, located
respectively in Everett and Peninsula, are connected with a very interesting story. Shortly after
the opening of the canal in 1827, there was a heavy rain that caused Furnace Run in Peninsula
to swell to such heights and speeds that the water washed tons of mud and sand into lock num-
bers 27 and 28. This mud and sand temporarily closed down these two locks thus trapping a
boat in each lock. Since the canal boats very seldom were caught between towns for extended
periods of time, they carried only small amounts of corn meal and flour. Since the people in lock
27 only had corn meal, they were forced to eat Johnnycakes (pancakes made from corn meal).
Since then lock 27 has been known as the Johnnycake Lock. A similar situation was enacted
within lock 28, but in this case they were forced to eat pancakes. Thus lock 28 became locally

IWilliam D. Ellis, The Cuyahoga, (New York: Holt, Rinchart,and Winston, 1966), p. 220.

2Interview: Miss Celia Cranz, February 16, 1968.
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Moving north, one comes to the most heavily populated area of Bath (at that time), at Hurd’s
Corners. Residents of the Bath and Hametown Roads area had their school on the northeast
corner It was what is now the property of Richard C. McMillin. Farley’s Corners school was also

on the northeast corner, though about 200 feet Northeast of the present day intersection of
Bath and Medina Line roads. (In that day, the road went straight east instead of making the little
southward jog it does today.) Many Medina county children attended this school.!

Until 1893, when Bath High School was established we had none. Those fortunate enough to
g0 to high school (they were few) went either to Copley, Richfield, Granger, or Akron by train2
The children who went to high school in these other townships mostly lived near the edges of
the township, within walking distance, or were affluent enough to own a “rig”.

In 1893, a high school was built using the upper floor of Bath Center school. The % of the
first floor remained an elementary school. Mr. Clyde Berry was installed as principal. Tuition
in those days (high school was not free as were the elementary schools) averaged - get this - $40
a year. This first class, which numbered five, graduated in 1895, since it was only a three year
high school, ninth, tenth, eleventh grades.

Bath High grew slowly but steadily. However, it lacked accredidation and students could not
continue on to college. The infamous “Bean” scandal opened Bath’s eyes to the need of an ac-
credited high school. L. G. Bean was hired as principal in 1907. He, having only a high school

Unterview, Mrs. Walter A. Grosh.

2Interview, Miss Celia Cranz.

60





index-17_1.jpg
attractive. The state decided to sell the lands and use the revenue from the sale for development
of its schools. Its committee of eight sold the land, not in individual plots, but in a block to a
committee which represented the interests of 57 people, called the Connecticut Land Company.!

The land company’s first action was to survey the land and divide it into townships, each
five miles square. Moses Cleaveland led the first expedition, which eventually surveyed the entire
Reserveeast of the Cuyahoga River. Cleaveland had cleared up the Indian claims east of the river,
but a treaty at Ft. McIntosh in 1785 had established the Cuyahoga as the western boundary of
the United States. Bath thus was placed in the wilderness, and while the rest of the Reserve was
surveyed in 1797, Bath and its part of the Reserve were not surveyed until 1806, when the Indian
title to the land was extinguished. 2

After surveying, the Western Reserve provided an unpleasant surprise, for the owners had not
known that the Lake Erie cut so deeply into the land. The company had expected to find in ex-
cess of 4,000,000 acres, but instead found 3,800,000. The entire Western Reserve is in the
northeastern corner of Ohio, with Lake Erie in the north, Pennsylvania on the east, a latitude
of about 41 degrees north to the soutli, and the counties of Sandusky and Seneca to the west.
Each lot in a township was to have 1/100 of the area of the township, but only 12% of the town-
ships were able to follow this plan, Bath among them.3

The first surveyors in Bath, marking the Bath-Northampton line, were members of a group of
fifteen people including Captain J.A. Harper, who surveyed the township’s east boundary in
May, 1808. Bath was 12 townships west from the Pennsylvania line, that was 12 ranges over, and
3 townships north from the southern line of the Reserve: that is why it came to be designated
Township 3, Range 12. The surveyors’ team included others who were probably the first white
men to go inland from the Cuyahoga, “Ax men, with the . . jjob of hacking a path for the survey,
the chain carriers who followed along, pack horses and drivers with supplies and equipment, one
half-breed handyman, and a ‘worthless Englishman’ who was fired for drinking.” %

When the parallels were surveyed, special areas of land called “equalizing townships” were set
aside. Strips of land from these would be added to poor townships, to make them equal in value
to the townships that had better quality land. In Bath the men on the “equalizing committee”
found nothing to “‘equalize.”

An old method of dividing land in Connecticut was used by the proprietors of the Western
Reserve. There were 46 townships involved, and the proprietors were divided into 46 “classes”
Each class drew a township for common ownership. Class No. 6, including Thomas Bull, Ezekiel
Williams, Samuel W. Williams, Timothy Burr, Timothy Burr’s heirs, Elisha Strong, and W. & J.
Battles, drew Township 3, Range 12. Each of these parties owned a share of the township
corresponding to his share in the land company.6

I1bid., p. 20.
2Treaty of Ft. Industry in 1805: Ibid., p. 20.
31bid., p. 17.
41bid., p. 20.
Sibid., p. 20.

6Horton, John J., The Jonathan Hale Farm (Cleveland: The Western Reserve Historical Society,
1961), p. 24.
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gown to 465. In another five years, in 1963, it had expanded to over 500, compared to the
1968 enrollment of approximately 660.
Before the construction of Eastview in 1960, Revere was handling the ninth graders and Hill-
crest was handling the seventh and eighth graders. Wh
. e

only the tenth, eleventh, and twelfth graders and Hillcrest became strictly an elementary school
along with Bath.1

Since its first years, Revere has gained several additions to its original structure. In 1955 the
auditorium and gymnasium were added. In 1957 a new addition extending west containing class-
rooms and industrial arts rooms were erected. Another addition, begun in 1963, gave Revere its
cafeteria and library along with a few new classrooms. Finally, the newest additions (1967-1968)
are providing new classrooms, a new band room, offices, and much new equipment.

Thus far in this section there has been little mention of Bath school. For many years it was
the only school that Bath had. Now it is one of the many and handles only the first through
sixth graders. In the years from 1895-1953 (when it became an elementary school) it graduated

Unterview, George Bayliss, Principal of Revere High School.
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The earliest available township records giving the names of the elected officials are trustee’s
records dating from 1865. Some of these early trustees included: Gerry Pardee, Abijah Spencer,
Roswell Hopkins, Thomas Pierson, H. H. Mack, Peter Miller, Luke Wuckoff, and Joseph Brim-
ley. Holding the office of clerk at this time were: W. H. Rozelle, John Spears, Abraham Harshey,
G. Thorp, and John Davis.2 Other appointed offices included constables, road supervisors, and
ditch supervisors. When the township was started it was part of Medina County, but it became
part of Summit County in 1840 when this county was first formed.

The early duties of the township trustees were concerned mainly with the maintenance and
upkeep of the roads, the town hall, and the cemetery. Although the trustees were not permitted
to pass ordinances, they could levy taxes needed for upkeep. This was the case for road taxes.
The early farmers either had to pay the road tax or periodically repair the road in front of their
property with their farm equipment. Other duties which the trustees occasionally performed were
buying groceries for the poorer families, and giving out bonuses to war veterans. The present
trustees no longer have the power to perform these two services, due to state legislation. Since
the early trustees had to authorize anything dealing with roads, farmers even had to obtain the
permission of the trustees to graze their cows along the road. An example of this is an excerpt
from the minutes of the trustees meeting held April 21, 1866. “This day the trustees granted the
following permits for cattle to run at large in the highway: Benjaimin Point, John C. Sallman,
C. Smith, Oliver Thorp, W. A. Rozelle, and W. W. Williamson.” Since the roads were, for the
most part, self-maintained, and the maintenance cost of the town hall and cemetery was low,
the early appropriations were small. A comparison of the 1967 and 1867 expenditures show that
in 1867 $664.56% was spent, while one hundred years later, $179,000.00 was needed.5

‘The first regular fire station in Bath was organized in 1922.6 The Stoney Hill Fire Department,
which was operated from 1935-1965, also served Bath.” The equipment of this department Was
bought and furnished by the volunteers. Before these fire stations were established, bucket bri-
gades and other haphazard techniques were the only methods for fire-fighting. This is the reason
why few of the old mills and stores are still standing. As Bath progressed through the years, the
importance of fire and police protection increased. In 1967 fire and police protection accounted
for almost one-half of the expenditures, but this included the last payment on the fire station
The present fire department consists of a fire chief, appointed by the trustees, two lieutenants,
and thirty qualified volunteers. There is also a rescue squad consisting of two emergency vehicles
and fourteen trained members. The police department is headed by an appointed police chief,

ITrustee Records. 1865-1914, pp. 1-66.

2Ibid., pp. 1-66.

3Interview with Mr. Clair B. Alexander, February 29, 1968.

4Trustee Records, 1865-1914, p. 20.

SBath Township Monthly Financial Report, Period ended February 29, 1968.
SInterview with Mr. Clair B. Alexander, February 29, 1968.

Tinterview with Mrs. Stein, February 16, 1968.

8Bath Township Monthly Financial Report, Period ended February 29, 1968.
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as ladders. As the Iroquois moved south, the Eries were either killed or forced to flee with their
belongings. The Eries along the Cuyahoga hastily built forts. But despite all efforts, the Cat Na-
tion was entirely crushed.! No further trace of the Eries remained as a tribe; whatever remained
of the Eries, if anything did, probably moved farther west forever, although nothing is known
for certain about the fate of this tribe. With the Eries gone, the Iroquois were now able to
claim all of the land south of Lake Erie.

Soon the French also had a claim on this land because of La Salle’s explorations in 1669.
Because there was practically constant warfare between the French and Iroquois, the French
were afraid to go below Lake Erie; La Salle was able to explore the Ohio country only because
at the time there was a short truce between the Iroquois and the French.2 La Salle is believed to
have been the first white man to travel on Portage Path, a link in the route from Lake Erie to
the Ohio River, probably made by the Mound Builders and extensively used as a highway later
by many different tribes of Indians. Portage Path connected the Tuscarawas and Cuyahoga Rivers
which are only eight miles apart. The path began at Old Portage about five miles north of Akron,
ran west half a mile, and then went steeply upward, rising more than three hundred feet in less
than a mile. It then closely followed the present Portage Path south to Copley Road, went
through Perkins Woods, dropped to lower ground near Manchester Road and continued south-
ward to a landing on the Tuscarawas just north of Long Lake. Today at Portage Path and West
Market Street the trail is marked by an Indian statue erected by Gus Kasch and dedicated on
July 4,1905.3

During their fighting with the French, the Iroquois were unable to maintain their complete
hold on the Ohio country, Indian nations, such as the Shawnees, Delawares, Miamis, Wyandots,
Chippewas, and the Ottawas, drifted back into Ohio.4 These tribes were migratory. One week
they would be at the mouth of the Cuyahoga, and the next week they would be at the head of
the Tuscarawas. In the area of the Cuyahoga, there were mostly Ottawas and Senecas with a
large number of Delawares and Mingoes and a few Oneidas, Cayugas, Massanges, Shawnees, and
Chippewas. One of the reasons for this melting pot of Indians in the area was that in the big U
of the Cuyahoga three great Indian trails crossed. The first was the Central Trail (these are white
men’s names) which went from Old Portage to Fort McIntosh by the way of the Big Falls to
Fish Creek, where the trail divided and went up the Cuyahoga to its source and then down it to
its mouth. The second was the Fort McIntosh, Muskingum, and Sandusky War Trail, and the
third was the northern trail along the lake shore from Buffalo to Detroit which became U.S. 205

Despite the proximity of the villages, the Inidans got along peacefully. The villages were often
as small as three to six huts; others had as many as a hundred. Every little stream into the Cuya-
hoga had at least one settlement on it.

Since the Indian nations living in Ohio in the early seventeenth century did not hate the

I1bid., p. 10.
21bid., p. 14.
31bid., p. 12.
Ibid., p. 14.
SWilliam Donohue Ellis, The Cuyahoga (New York:Holt, Rinehart, and Winston, 1966), p. 85.

Olbid.
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THE WESTERN RESERVE

The history of Bath prior to 1797 is the history of the Western Reserve and the Northwest
Territory. The French explorers were the first White Men to travel the American wilderness and
establish a claim-in it. La Salle and D’Iberville helped to give the French king his claim to New
France, which was called Louisiana. The land to the northwest of the Ohio River became one
sector of Louisiana in the late 17th century.!

The English, not knowing what was to the west when they settled the coast in 1607, supposed
that the “Great South Sea” lay somewhere in that direction, and that across it was China. They
felt that everything in the New World to the west “by right of discovery or by right of conquesl”z
belonged to the British crown. The Crown decided to grant parts of this land to companies and
individuals. Not knowing what there was to grant, the government wrote charters with vague
boundaries. Thus, the title for the Earl of Warwick’s Council of Plymouth Corporation gave the
following description of the land:

“All that part of New England, in America, which lies and extends itself from a river there
called the Narragansett River, the space of forty leagues upon a straight line near the sea
shore, towards the south-west, west by south, or west, as the coast lieth, towards Virginia,
accounting three English miles to the league, all and singular, the lands and hereditaments
whatsoever, lying and being within the bounds aforesaid, north and south in latitude and
‘breadth, and in length and longitude, and within all the breadth aforesaid throughout all the
‘main lands there, from the western ocean to the south seas.”—1662.

According to this statement, Connecticut owned a part of New York, Pennsylvania, and a strip
of land over what was later to be called Ohio, Indiana, Illinois, Iowa, through to California.#
Connecticut soon ceded some of its claim to New York, but argued to the point of battle over the
land claimed by Pennsylvania, finally yielding to the ruling of the Trenton Federal Court in
1782, which said that Pennsylvania had a right to its land. Afterwayds, Connecticut claimed all
of the land in the narrow strip west of Pennsylvania, to the sea.> When the new nation was
formed, however, conflicting land claims threatened to preserve disunity among the colonies.
Virginia, New York, and Massachusetts ceded their claims to western lands to the federal govern-
ment. Connecticut followed by giving up all of her western claims except a 120-mile strip south
of Lake Erie. This strip, the Western Reserve of Connecticut, includes Bath.

The Western Reserve was like a separate colony of Connecticut until May 30, 1800, when
jurisdiction over the area was given to Congress. Meanwhile, the state had chosena committee
of eight men to decide the best way of colonizing the land. Since the Treaty of Grenville with
the Indians in 1795, much of the threat to settlers seemed to be removed, and the lands were

1Howe, Historical Collections of Ohio Vol. I (Cincinnati: C.J. Krehbieland Co., 1900), p. 33.

2Hatcher, Harlan, The Western Reserve (Indianapolis: The Bobbs-Merrill Company, Inc., 1949)
p. 17

3bid., p. 17.
41bid., p. 17.

Sbid., p. 20.
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French, they allowed them to come into Ohio and start a fur trade. When the British grew envi-
ousand started their own trade, there were conflicts over the trading and the claims on the Ohio
country which led to the French and Indian War €1755). After the British won the war, settlers
moved into Ohio, disregarding treaties and breeding resentment in the Indians.

John Logan wasa famous chief of the Mingoes, a branch of the Iroquois, and more specifically,
an “impoverished branch of the Senecas.”2 When he heard of the murder of his family at
Yellow Creek near Steubenville, he turned against the whites, raiding settlements along the Mono-
gahela for six months.3 This is the chief who made the famous eloquent speech at Old Chilli-
cothe in 1774 about the loss of his wife and children. No doubt the Mingo village which was lo-
cated in Bath was often visited by Logan. On an old map published by Lewis Evans in 1775, a
Mingo settlement was positioned on the Cuyahoga River a little above the Tawas or Ottawas
which were in Northampton Township.# The Mingo town was on the land between the Cuyahoga
River and the high hills west of it.5 According to General Bierce’s Historical Reminiscences of
Summit County, remains of the Mingo town can be traced in a meadow a little northeast from
Jonathan Hale’s across the road and toward the river.6 Directly east of William Hale’s house on
lot eleven, there are also remains of a fort which guarded the Mingo village. The fort is on a high
ridge five hundred feet long about a quarter of a mile from the Mingo town and from thirty to
fifty feet above it. The remains are seventy-five feet in circumference with bastions, curtains,
and every other feature that ized a fortification of the ni century.” At the
mouth of Yellow Creek in Northampton is a large Indian cemetery which probably belonged to
the Mingo town. It seems likely that Yellow Creek in Bath was named for Yellow Creek near
Steubenville since a large band of Mingoes settled near this stream after Logan’s relatives were
killed.

Besides the Mingo town, an Indian camp was located on the north side of Sourek Road.
Evidence of a trail which came up from Copley can be seen around the area of Revere Road.
Saplings were tied down to mark the trail; today they can be seen as large trees with strange S
curves in them.

After fighting against the United States, the Indians were willing to talk peace at the end of
the American Revolution in 1781. In October 1784 the United States purchased all land belong-

1Grismer, pp. 15-16.
2Horton, p. 8.
3Grismer, p. 22.

“General L.V. Bierce, Historical Reminiscences of Summit County (Akron, Ohio:T. & H.G.
Canfield, 1854), p. 31.

Stbid., p. 30.
6Ibid., p. 32.
Tibid.

8Perrin, p. 222.

9Mr. James Kearney.
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Another active group, formed 10 years ago to furnish community interest and assistance
wherever needed, is Bath Volunteers for Service. It is a group of civic minded women who have
tackled and succeeded in helping Bath grow.

At the time of this sesquicentennial the groups and organizations which form the backbone
of Bath activities are:

Anniversary Club

The association of neighbors in allotments such
as Harmony Hills, Iradale, Meadow Park,
Ranchwood, Springerest, and Oak Knoll

The Athletic Group
Bath Boosters
Bath Grange
Bath Players
Chess Club
Civic Organization
Farm Bureau Council

Garden Clubs
Alpha (the oldest and the original), Beta,
Delta, Bath Gamma and Iradale

Idle Hour Club
Kiwanis Bath-Richfield
Pony Club
Pre-School Mothers
The Recreation Association
Rotary Club
Stoney Hill (Farm Women’s) Club
Bath Volunteers for Service
The Bath Welcome Wagon
West Bath Sunshine Club
Worthwhile Club

Boy and Girl Scouts!

A modern calendar of activities includes a garden show in March, an Art Show in September
and an antique show and Tour of Bath and Richfield Homes in October.

Undoubtedly there are many recent events which have not been mentioned, but the over-
sight is certainly unintentional. The Sesquicentennial Committee depended on the many hard
working members of these groups to make this celebration a success. The officers of this com-
mittee are Chairman, Alleen Stein; Assistant Chairman, Theodore Steiner; Secretary, Marian

lSesquic;entenm'al Committee.
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INDIAN HISTORY OF BATH

Centuries after the Mound Builders disappeared from this area, the Indians settled Ohio. The
Indian history of Bath begins about the middle of the seventeenth century when a tribe of
Indians called the Eries! inhabited northeastern Ohio. How far south from Lake Erie this tribe
settled is not certain; however, the Eries no doubt inhabited a great portion of Summit County,
possibly even the entire area.? These Indians, from what little information is known about them,
appear to have been intelligent, resourceful people. They lived in log cabins with bark roofs

by palisades; were among most Inidan tribes.
Not being a warlike people, they developed their agriculture. In clearings around each settlement
the Eries made small mounds in which their women planted beans, corn, and pumpkins.

On the small plateau across the road from the Hale House, overlooking Hale Run, is one of
the many forts accredited to the Eries, who built them from earth and logs on high land over-
looking river valleys.

While the Eries were living in northeastern Ohio, a tribe much more primitive and warlike
than the Eries, called the Iroquois, occupied New York and northern Pennsylvania.# One of the
enemies of the Iroquois were the Hurons, with whom they had been battling for years. When
Samuel de Champlain, founder of Quebec, joined a party of Hurons in the spring of 1609 and
invaded the northern central section of New York, defeating the Iroquois and destroying
their villages, the Iroquois hated the French for many years afterward.5 After their defeat by
the Hurons, the Iroquois built up their defenses and formed a strong confederation of five
tribes, the Mohawks, Oneidas, Onondagas, Cayugas, and Senecas, and called it the Five Nations.
Laterswhen the Tuscarawas were added to this alliance, the name was changed to the Six Na-
tions.

When the Dutch settled New Amsterdam (later called New York by the British) in 1626,
they tried to gain the friendship of the Iroquois through gifts, knowing that the alliance would
keep the French from taking over their colony. Among these gifts to the Iroquois was a large
quantity of firearms. With these guns, the Iroquois swept westward as far as the Mississippi, con-
q\un‘gﬁ all the tribes which opposed them. Among their victims were the Eries of northeastern
Ohio.

In 1655, invading Ohio from Lake Erie, the Iroquois scaled the Eries’ forts using their canoes

IBecause the word “Erie” means “cat”, the Eries were sometimes called the Cat Nation.

2William Henry Perrin, History of Summit County (Chicago:Baskin & Battey, Historical
Publishers, 1881), p. 215.

3John H. Horton, The Jonathan Hale Farm, A Chronicle of the Cuyahoga Valley (Cleveland:
The Western Reserve Historical Society, 1961), p. 8.

41bid.

SKarl H. Grismer, Akron and Summit County (Akron, Ohio:Summit County Historical
Society, no publishing date) p. 13.

6Perrin, p. 215.

TGrismer, p. 14.
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Survey Bill and Field Notes of Connecticut Western Reserve. Vol. 3, Book 8.

Permission_granted from manuscript collection of the Western Reserve Historical Society,
Cleveland, Ohio.
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foremost among these was Jared Barker, remembered as the first farmer in Bath to have a modern
dairy. The surplus eggs, cheese and butter were sent to Akron to the Sumner Butter Company,
which is still active as Beatrice Creameries.

If a farmer had excess milk, he would make butter or cheese out of it rather than waste it. The
only alternative was to use the excess milk for pigfeed. As a result, small factories for making
cheese were created. One such cheese factory was located just east of Hammond’s Corners, at
the corner of Granger and Medina County Roads, and another one was located near the Botzum
railroad station on Ira Road.

Bath Township was basically an agrarian society during the 1800’s and early 1900's, and the
small industries that did exist arose from the needs of the farmers.

When Jonathan Hale came to Bath in 1810, there was nothing even resembling a general store.
Eight years later, however, (1818), Mr. Staats established a general store in Ghent at the south-
west comer of Granger and Wye Roads. At Hammond’s Corners, Mr. Whitcraft established a
general store which soon became one of the largest in this area, and people from many miles
around came to use the store. It burned down in 1909, and the spot is now occupied by Mr.
Whitcraft’s grandson, Garth Andrew, who owns an interior decorating shop there. Another store
was owned by Paul Cranz. Besides these stores, there was virtually no other choice for the farmers
except to go to Akron for their goods, make them themselves, or do without them.

Another prominent activity in Bath’s misspent youth was distilling. Stills dotted the country.
One of the larger ones at Ghent was started by James Booth in the early 1800’s, and it produced
two barrels of whiskey a day, which Booth sold at 12-18 cents per gallon.2 From the various
stills, the town got its liquor, and several taverns were erected. The first tavern was located at
what is now called Montrose. It was built by Moses Latta in 1818 and the area there was named
aftter him (Latta’s Corners) but later became Ellis’ Corners. This tavern later became a “notorious
hangout for counterfeiters.”3 Ghent Marathon station now stands on the former site of the vil-
lage tavern, which also served as a hotel for travelling salesmen.

At about the time of the great railroad expansion in the United States (mid-late 1800’s),
tracks were being laid in Ghent. The workers in this endeavor were primarily Irish immigrants
and were very high-strung. While they were working on the tracks, one could very often find the
fighting Irish doing just that - fighting in the taverns of Ghent instead of putting down the tracks.
The railroad, however, was never completed although remains of the track can be seen in south-
western Bath. The planning of the railroad had its good effects: business was stimulated, and
two hotels, a tavern, a blacksmith’s shop, and a grocery were established.

Bath even had its share of shady characters. In addition to the counterfeiters at Latta’s Cor-
ners, there were horse thieves, of low morals but quite intelligent, who used Bath to conduct
their business. Actually, there were two groups of men, one centered in Illinois and the other in
Pennsylvania. The thieves would steal their horses in their own territory and then meet in Bath
near the Botzum railroad station. There they would trade horses and go home to sell them, and

Unterview, Mr. Clair Alexander, February 22, 1968.
2bid.
3Perrin, op. cit.

41bid.
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The land in Ghent where the E-Mar now stands was the site of an assembly hall in 1898,
Having a dining hall below and a dancing floor on the second level, this hall was used for social
events until about the 1930’s. The Knights of the Maccabees met in this building. Like the Masons
or the Elks this is a secret order formed on the basis of the Book of Maccabeus in the Catholic
Bible. Dr. Robert Smith also had an office in the lower floor of the same building.

From 1900 to 1910 Mr. Hopkins lived where the Stephen Kollmar family now lives(2404
Granger Road). Shortly after 1910 the Hopkins house was moved onto Crystal Lake Road and is
now the home of Andrew Miller, Jr.

The whole Bath community usually had a Pioneer Picnic around the 10th of September
celebrated each year until the 1930’s. It was a picnic in honor of Commodore Oliver Perry’s naval
victory on Lake Erie in 1813. At the picnic there was a bandstand in which a fife and drum corps

51





index-15_1.jpg
During the war, Jonathan Hale and his neighbors lived in fear of the tomahawk. For protection,
there were no holes in the cabins except a small one cut out of one of the logs to admit light and
air. At dark the lights were extinguished and the oven door was put up to close the small hole in
the log to prevent the Indians from shooting in at them. Mr. Hale slept with his rifle within his
reach and a loaded pistol under his pillow. The axe was within reach of his wife; Jonathan said
“4if they had come in she would have hewed down two or three of them.”

Shortly after the War af 1812, the red man left Bath Township, leaving numerous relics be-
hind him. The white man had pushed the Indians farther west.2

Iibid.

2Samuel A. Lane, Fifty Years and Over of Akron and Summit County (Akron, Ohio: Beacon
Job Department, 1892), p. 643.

Connie Laessig
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The trustees merely manage the township.

Bathis one of the few suburban areas with a,township form of government. Looking into the
future, it islikely that it will remain a township and not move up a step to become a village. This
results from the fact that, according to law, a village must have a population density of at least
three hundred people per square mile, something which Bath s not likely to obtain in the near
future.! Also, before it can become a separate village it must first give Richfield and Fairlawn
the chance to absorb it.

Thus Bath’s government, symbolic of the independent New England heritage of Bath itself,
remains a small, self-contained, friendly, and conscientious body.

Interview with Mr. John E. Warner, March 7, 1968.

Rich Jackson
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Traces of the Mound Builders in Bath are difficult to find. Walking along the ridge across the
road from the Hale Homestead, in north eastern Bath, one may come across an oval cavity in the
earth with raised edges, according to Whittlesey in 1871. To the south a strange, regular walled
formation of earth may be seen on a slope in the ground, according to Bierce in 1854. It would
take an expert to identify them now; plowing and erosion take their toll on the structures. Even
in 1871 Whittlesey complained that some mounds, which he had indicated were in Bath, were
barely visible. Farmers deliberately plowed them level, for they almost always were made of rich
soil.

The Indians also made the job of learning about the Mound Builders more difficult. They gen-
erally denied knowledge of the earlier race, which had no place in their traditions or mytho-
logy.2 Perhaps, if the Mound Builders were very long past, even Indian lore could not remember
them. The Indians also made changes in the mounds by camping on them, burying their own
dead in them, and leaving stone artifacts in them which could be confused with the tools of the
Mound Builders.3

I1bid., p. 20.
2Perrin, op. cit., p. 208.
31bid., p. 214. 3

Cathy Morstatter
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FOREWORD

This narrative history of Bath Township commemorates the sesquicentennial of the founding
of Bath as an organized community in 1818. Of equal importance is the relating of events
which transmit the historical heritage of the township. These events record the courage and sac-
rifice required to carve a community out of the wilderness known as Connecticut’s Western
Reserve. The writers have tried to show the tremendous changes which have created the present
township of nearly 6,000 people.

This history was researched and written by the students of the Senior Social Studies Seminar
class of Revere Senior High School under the direction of Mrs. Ruth Bond. To cover the mate-
rial adequately, these student historians divided the material into principal topics such as Early
History, Early Families, Transportation, etc. On each of these topics a committee worked in
unison. The names of the students responsible for each section are given at the end.

Readers will find that the authors present in each chapter a chronological narrative of events
from the early 1800’s to the present time. To facilitate an overview of all events in specific pe-
riods of time a chronological list of dates and happenings is listed following the table of contents.

In the preparation of this 150 year history, a large number of local people have assisted the
senior writers in many ways.

Thanks must be given first to the staff of Bath Public Library and to Mrs. William Sykes,
formerly at Richfield Library and to Mrs. Robert J. Hemphill who provided many suggestions
and sources, among them the old records of the trustees of Bath Township.

A debt of gratitude is owed to Mrs. Walter Grosh and Mr. Clair Alexander who both spent
hours in being interviewed. They also searched for suitable pictures and corrected and coordi-
nated duplicated information. Mr. Robert Hollister helped edit the completed reports. The
township trustees cooperated in providing facts and maps from their records.

Mr. Donald Lee Smith of Revere English Department graciously assisted by proofreading the
final copy.

To the many local residents of the township who contributed information in interviews, and
to those who shared their valuable collections with the Seminar Students, a sincere thanks is
given.

The names listed in the bibliography at the end of this history provide a roster of the many
thoughtful people who assisted in any way.

This booklet was typed by Mary Jane Shafer, and printed by the students in the Graphic Arts
Department of Revere Senior High School under the direction of Mr. Don Myers.

The cover was printed by the Rohrich Lithograph Company through the courtesy of Mr.
Robert Rohrich.

Mr. George Bayliss, Revere Senior High School principal, encouraged this project with his
helpful suggestions.

The Sesquicentennial committee, consisting of Mrs. Alleen Stein, Theodore Steiner, Mrs.
Marian Brock, Mrs. James McKibben, and David Darst, has given valuable assistance during the
entire project.

The maps in this booklet were made available through the courtesy of Hale Homestead, Wes-
tern Reserve Historical Society, Mr. Clair B. Alexander, and the Bath Township Trustees. The
pictures were donated by Garth Andrew, Mrs. Walter Grosh, and Mr. Clair Alexander.

Mrs. Ruth Bond
May, 1968
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a total of 689 people.!

The teachers and school officials have, of course, changed much since Revere began. Roy
Pugh was superintendent from 1950-1953. After Mr. Pugh, Harold Schweisberger was made super-
intendent in August of 1953. Dr. Frank Mayer then became superintendent and in 1967 Eugene
Miller took the office. The principal of Revere is George Bayliss, while at Eastview the principal
is Eugene Glick. At Bath and Hillcrest Gaylord Best is principal.

Revere has a very fine athletic department and has many first place trophies in the suburban
league. The music department is also very fine and has taken trips in this country and Canada. Its
forensic department is one of the finest in the Northeastern Ohio area. Revere is also proud of
its merit scholars.

The Revere school system has grown much since its beginning at the time of the consolidation
and will continue to grow in the future. It has gained in the eyes of its suburban league com-
petitors in athletic, scholastic, forensic, and musical standing. The citizens of this community
have a right to be proud of their school system.

Unterview, Mrs. Walter Grosh. Retired teacher at Bath Schools.
2Interview, Mr. George Bayliss, Principal of Revere High School.
Randy Natalino

Joel Donnenwirth
Greg Anderson
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‘The only important stream in Bath Township is Yellow Creek. In flowing across the town-
ship for five miles, this stream has a fall of 400 feet. Although it does not have any noticeable
natural falls, almost its entire course is characterized by a succession of rapids.

Many springs of pure water are found in various parts of the township. A small stream called
“Hale’s Run” drains the northeastern portion of the township and flows directly into the
Cuyahoga. Another creek rises near the northwest corner, takes a southeasterly course and flows
into Yellow Creek at Ghent.

Yellow Creek’s bed is stony, and the stream has cut its way deeply into the soil, as can be
seen by the steep, high bluffs bordering the creek and the rapid flow of the water. The surface
soil is largely clay mingled with pebbles in many places. In basin-like portions of the township
the soil cont: andan f excellent sandstone is easily obtained.

The castern half of the township is rich in mineral and fossil remains. There is a large percent-
age of iron oxides, or bog iron ore in the earth, as is shown by the character of the water and the
peculiar coloring of the soil when newly turned up. Most of the water is strongly ferriferous, even
the streams deposit a reddish precipitate, and most of the land that was swampy is underlaid
with a bed of bog ore. Because the country had cleared up and the water drained off, it had
oxydized.

The most remarkable feature in the geological formation of the land is the fossil remains to be
seen in limestone found in the township. The rocks, which are covered with many feet of earth,
seem to be made up of the casts of animals that must have existed under the surface of water.
Large quantities of fossil coral of the honeycomb and sponge varieties and salt water fossil
shells also show that the land was once the bed of the ocean. This fossil shell limestone rock,
when burnt, makes the whitest lime and is excellent for that prupose although it is not mined
extensively now.3

The climate of Bath is one of extremes. Its surface is swept alternately by southwest return
trades and northwest polar winds. The rains are brought in by the southwest winds. The average
total precipitation is 32 inches with a distribution of 10-12 inches in the spring, 10-14 in the
summer, 8-10 in the autumn and 7-10 in the winter.

Between the average summer and winter temperatures there is a difference of at least 40°
Fahrenheit, the average winter temperature being 30°, the average summer temperature, 739,
and the mean annual temperature, 49°. The annual range of temperature is not less than 100°;
the maximum range is at least 120° because the extreme heat of summer may reach 100° while
the cold waves of winter may reach 20° below zero. Extreme changes are likely to occur in a few
hours, especially in the-winter. The temperature may fall 60° in 24 hours, while changes of 200
or 30° in a day are not unusual. Because the winters are very changeable, snow seldom remains
30 days at a time, but an ice crop stays. In spite of such sudden and severe changes, the climate
of Bath is adapted to both vegetable and animal life.#

11bid., p. 617.

2General L.V. Bierce, Reminiscences of Summit County, (Akron:T. & H.G. Caufield, 1854),
p.35.

3Perrin, op. cit., p. 618.

“4Henry Howe, Historical Collections of Ohio, (Cincinnati:C.J. Krehbiel & Company, 1888), I,
p- 87-88.

Marta Shkolnik
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glass.! The walls are wooden with wallpaper over them, making the house cold in the winter.2

Across the road on Yellow Creek Road stood a three-story grist and flour mill, fed from a
pond race from the bridge by Cleveland-Massillon Road. The water would be stored in the pond
overnight and then sent through the race, over the overshot wheel and then to the mill. Built in
the early 1870’s, the mill changed hands several times before it became “Hershey’s mill.” George
Hershey worked in it, and his brother Ott, who owned a store in Ghent, held a share in it. In
1915, it was sold to Jared Barker, who installed steam power in 1921. The mill burned once, was
rebuilt, and then burned again.3

A quarter of a mile on down Yellow Creek was another grist and flour mill which burned
sometime before 1870.4

William Barker, noticing the great resources available in the Bath area, built a sawmill on the
creek and used water power until he installed steam power in 1889. His son Jared later took over
the business.

The logs were brought downhill by three oxen teams. The blacksmith at Hammond’s Corners,
Joseph Bailer, made a pair of wheels eight feet in diameter to use to haul three or four foot
diameter trees or very long logs, a task that required two teams of horses.

Lumber was purchased from Sandy Hale, Sam Shaw, Luke Wycoff and other area farmers and
sawed at a daily rate of 3,000 to 5,000 feet. Good lumber was worth $15 to $28 per 1,000 feet
and was sold to the Buckeye Mower and Reaper Company in Akron or shipped up to Cleveland
on the canal. Mill hands were paid from $1 to $1.50 a day for 10-12 hours’ work. Those who
were talented enough to be able to make door and window frames received $3 a day.5 Barker's
mill made spokes and felloes for buggies and wagons and also shipped timber for masts for sailing
ships in Cleveland. In 1903, Hopkins bought the mill and relocated it on Granger Road.6

Another mill farther east was a grist and flour mill built sometime after the Civil War and
called the Harris mill before it burned.

On Cleveland-Massillon Road between Ghent and Bath Center was another mill with a steam
engine. Established in the early 1900’s, it sawed lumber for 10 years and then quit.

While much of Bath’s early industry took the form of mills along Yellow Creek, the majority
of the people were plain farmers. The mills were created by the farmers’ need to process their
produce. Most of the farmers grew wheat and took it to one of the mills to be made into flour.
If the farmer’s produce exceeded his usage, the extra flour was sent to Akron and sold to stores
there.

Akron also served as an outlet for Bath’s dairy products. Although no farmer had very many
cows or chickens, most of the farmers usually had some extra milk or eggs at some time. The

IPerrin, William, op. cit.

2Cleveland Plain Dealer, op. cit.

3interview with Mr. Clair Alexander, February 22, 1968.
4bid.

SAnne McCausland, The Passing Parade.

SInterview with Mr. Clair Alexander, February 22, 1968.

Tibid.
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and s staffed by an assistant chief and two patrolmen. Eight trained volunteers are also available
if needed. Through the years, Bath has been served by post offices in Akron, Copley, Medina,
Montrose, Ghent, Hinckley, West Richfield, Peninsula, Everett, Ira, and Bath.! The first post
office in Bath was started in 1836 at Bath Center. In 1839 a post office was started at the corner
of Ira and Cleveland-Massillon Roads. The post office has continued at this site until the present
day, except for a twelve year period from 1936-1948. The first post master was James S. Hooker,
who was appointed on May 15, 1839.2 The present post master is Harold L. Caylor, who has
held that position for twenty years. The present post office was erected in 1962, and is rated as
a second class post office, doing in excess of $25,000 annually.

The present township trustees are Mr. W.J. Fogarty, Mr. AM. Honeywell, and Mr. John E.
Warner, trustees; and Mr. Philip Smith, the clerk. Their predecessors, going back to 1946 were:
Eber Shoemaker, E.R. Rockwell, A.C. Alexander, B.J. Stauffer, Homer E. Fox, Earl H. Miller,
Clair B. Alexander, Jared Davis, Gunmar Soderberg, and E.J. Mooneyham, trustees; W.M. Pier-
son and Ford S. Crile, clerks.4 Mr. Crile in particular had an outstanding career, serving from
1948 to 1967. The office of Justice of the Peace was abolished by the Ohio State legislature in
1958. Bath’s Justice of the Peace at that time was Mr. David Darst.5 The present duties of the

trustees include maintenance of the roads, town hall, and cemetery; fire and police protection;
rubbish collection; and zoning. Mr. Warner is in charge of the police and zoning, Mr. Foy
handles the roads and cemeteries, and Mr. Honeywell manages the fire department and utilities.
The clerk has no vote in the trustees’ affairs, but only handles the paperwork and records every-
thing. The officials are elected for four-year terms; one trustee and the clerk are elected one year,
and the other two trustees are elected two years later. The trustees meet three times a month in
the town hall, on the first three Mondays of the month. The meetings are open to anyone who
has a complaint or merely wants to know what is going on. Since Bath is only a township it can-
not, as a village can, pass ordinances; that is, laws dealing with road speeds, job openings, etc.

1Dedication of the Post Office” pamphlet, 1963, p. 3.
2bid., p. 2.

3bid., p. 3.

4Trustees Records, 1946-1968.

Stbid., 1958.
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The original Ghent Disciple Church, erected in 1901, consisted chiefly of a small sanctuary,
but additional space was soon required. In about 1905, a belfry and a vestibule were constructed.
In 1948, an educational and social wing were added to the church. The congregation, however,
sensed a need for even more facilities in the immediate future, and a building committee was
rapidly formed. Following much study, the church in 1958 purchased eight acres of land at the
corner of Granger and Crystal Lake Roads. Work was started and a formal dedication was held
in 1960 for the Sanctuary-Fellowship Hall and Church School Classrooms. Serving the church
and its 400 members for the past four years has been the Reverend Gene Chiavetta.

A third church located in Bath Township which possesses a large background is the Montrose-
Zion Evangelical United Brethern Church. Although an original structure erected by this denom-
ination is not in existence, this church may claim nearly 100 years of history. Today the church
is situated at 656 Cleveland-Massillon Road. Leading a congregation numbering about 400, the
Reverend Walter Chisolm served the modern Montrose Church.

The present church was originally formed through a merger of two distinct groups, the con-
gregations of both Zion Chapel and the Montrose Church. The two initially belonged to the Rich-
field Circuit, an organization serving the U. B. churches in northern Summit County. Later the
numerous U. B. churches in the Bath area formed the Montrose Circuit. The Zion Chapel was
started in 1871; most probably, interested persons conducted meetings in homes during this
time, for not until 1883 did a permanent structure come into being. With acreage purchased
from Mr. John Rhone, the community was convassed for building materials.

In 1888, the Montrose Church was dedicated with the Reverend H. J. Shreffler as its first
pastor. For two years previous to this date, a small congregation had collected in the Ghent
school south of the old Route 21 and Route 18 intersection. About 22 persons became charter
members of the church. The structure was situated on Cleveland-Massillon Road, where it was
located until 1960.

The merger between the Montrose Church and the Zion Chapel was initially proposed in
1947. The latter voted to “unite the two churches and build a new church.”2 Ultimately the
plan was favorably received by the Montrose congregation. The proposal was altered, however,
to state that rather than a new structure, redecoration of the Montrose church would suffice.
The remodeling was completed in 1954. It was not until 1959, though, that the two churches
actually merged. In this year, the two congregations collected together at the Montrose Church,
becoming a body which today represents the Montrose-Zion E. U. B. Church. Three years after
the merger, the new church building was constructed.

A single glance does not indicate the true heart of a church and its members. This statement
is particularly true of today’s Montrose church. The present minister of the Montrose church
anticipates numerous alterations in the church’s structure. In April, 1968, the church will have
united with the i inati Mont; Zion E. U. B. Church is indeed a leader
in attempts to extend its teachings and unite various people in a common cause.

The Bath United Church of Chirst and the former Ghent Disciple Church are the sole original
church structures in existence in Bath today. In the late 1800s, however, no other village in
Summit County could boast as many churches as Bath Township. A large portion of these church-
es served the Congregational faith, the members being the settlers having a New England back-
ground. Persons of German ancestry organized churches of either the United Brethern or Evan-
gelical denomination.3

Iinterview with the Reverend Walter Chisolm, March 18, 1968.
2¢“The History of the Montrose-Zion Evangelical United Brethern Church.”

3Interview with Miss Celia Cranz, March 5, 1968.
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PRIMITIVE MAN—
THE MOUND BUILDERS

Along the Ohio River to the south, and on the Cuyahoga and other rivers draining into Lake
Erie in the north, a race of prehistoric men left 10,000 mounds of earth in Ohio.! These earth-
works are the outstanding vestiges of that race, which today is known as the Mound Builders.
The few mounds, or sites of mounds, in Bath are in the eastern part of the township near the
Cuyahoga River, which by some evidence used to run nearer to the border than it does presently.2
The Mound Builders who built these were part of the tribe classified as the “military nation”
‘because their structures were mostly forts, or defensive structures.

Because people today are d dent on the mounds for i ion about the Mound Builders,
little is known about the race as a whole. Its origin and its disappearance are mysteries. It pre-
ceded the White Man and the Inidan in North America - how long ago is unknown. Some
authorities think Mound Builders were in Ohio as little as 200 years before the Indians came.3
Others - according to Perrin “perhaps a majority of intelligent men”4 - believe that they were
contemporary with Ancient Egypt, from 2000 to 3000 B. C.

William Henry Perrin in his History of Summit County, published in 1881, used the varieties
of mounds to evaluate the civilization of the Mound Builders. He said that they must have been
“anumerous people. . .,” as he judged by the “magnitude and elaboration of their works.” They
were “unquestionably subservient to rulers. . .” who could force men to build mounds. They
were “warlike,” as their numerous forts evinced, and, from the smooth and accurate shapes of
many of their mounds, they were “familiar with many mathematical and mechanical rules.”
Perrin concluded that the nation must have been agricultural because it was “too numerous to
live by the chase alone.”5

Inside the mounds a startling discovery was made about the development of the Mound
Builders. Aside from ornaments of bone, shell, stone, and mica were found “copper tools, spear
heads, spades, and knives, (which) were numerous and superior in form and finish to the few
and rude copper knives of the Indians.”® It was determined that the Mound Builders actually
mined copper, which the Indians who followed did not know how to do. Because of this, and
because the Indians professed no knowledge of the use of the mounds (also because of physical
differences in body structure), it is doubted that the Indians descended from the Mound Builders.
If they had been descended America would have progressed from a Metal Age to a Stone Age.”

LPerrin, W.H., ed., History of Summit County (Chicago:Baskin & Battey Historical Publishers,
1881), p. 208.

2Bierce, Gen. L.V., Historical Reminiscences of Summit County (Akron:T. & H.G. Canfield,
1854), p. 37.

3Kearny, James, interview March 27, 1968.
4Perrin, op. cit., p. 208.
STbid., p. 210.

SWhittlesey, Col. Charles, Ancient Earth Forts of the Cuyahoga Valley, Ohio (Cleveland:
Fairbanks, Benedict & Co., 1871), p. 8.

Tibid., p. 8.
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INDUSTRY

Yellow Creek, which starts up at the county line and runs west to east across Bath, provided
the water power for 13 mills which stood at various times along the creek, beginning in 1818
when a Major Hoadley established the first sawmill.] There were “grist and merchant flouring
‘mills, sawmills, woolen mills, planing, turning, and bending mills, and hub, spoke and felloe
factories.”2 Some lasted for only a few years while others remained for a long time. Fires and
floods were the major source of ruin.

West of Ghent on what is now Granger Road were established three mills, each the first of its
kind in the area. (See map.)

At the farthest west was the Hopkins lumber mil

and the first power sawmill. James Root built it in the 1820’s, and from 1825 to 1831, it was
operated by Conrad Turner. The Hopkins family acquired the millin 1870 and at various times
in its history added a flutter wheel, under shot and turbine.3 The mill bought timber from area
farmers and produced among other items wood for door frames, porches, and bric-a-brac.4 Re-
‘mains of the mill can still be seen today by the dam on Yellow Creek.

Down the creck less than half a mile was a three-story grist and flour mill, established in 1830
by a Mr. Hopkins, who then sold it to a Mr. Heller, who operated the mill until the 1880’s when
he traded it to the Harshey family (later spelled “Hershey”) for a farm.5 A cow path connected
the two mills. Steam was added by a Mr. Rocktruck for use when the creek became too low in

Isummit County Historical Society calendar, 1968, William Falor Agency.

2Samuel Lane, Fifty Years of Akron and Summit County (Akron: Beacon Journal Job De-
partment, 1892), p. 640.

3Akron Times Press, July 18, 1934.
Hnterview with Mr. Clair Alexander, February 22, 1968.

Sibid.
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It is estimated that in 1870, the church was moved from its first location to a new site west
of Hammond’s Corners, today the intersection of Ira Road and Cleveland-Massillon Road. The
building was situated on land owned by Mr. Brigham Moody.

In 1893, leaders of the congregation resolved to formally organize the church as a denomina-
Following a series of meetings, a council of Congregational ministers from Summit and
ing counties formulated a permanent arrangement for Bath Church and adopted a consti-

tios
adje
tution.

During this period of history, the 1880’s and 1890’s, the church property became a possession
of the United Brethern Church. Not until 1897 did Bath Church acquire enough resources to
purchase this acreage occupied by the structure. Merely a year following this acquisition, the
church’s members determined once again to alter the location of the building. The position of
the structure atop a hill proved inconvenient to many persons. Mr. James Edger ultimately agreed
to exchange his lot bordering directly on Hammond’s Corners for the hill site. Bath Church oc-
cupied this new location until 1949.

The period 1870 to 1893 was an unsteady one for Bath Church. Throughout these years one
minister was loyed to serve both the C i Church of Richfield and of
Bath. This same system of sharing pastors with various churches was utilized intermittently after
1893 also.

Since the late 1880’s, Bath Church has steadily increased its membership; today, the congre-
gation numbers about 650. Church leaders naturally became aware of the need for larger facilities.
A decision was ultimately rendered in 1949 which stated that, for the fourth time, the building
would be relocated. The new site chosen on West Bath Road is the present address of the church.
Property was donated by the Karl Beachler family. In 1949, Mrs. Eulalia Plank wrote a history
of the Bath Community Church. In 1949 also, in addition to its transport down Route 21, Bath
Church received the start of a needed classroom wing. The structure enlarged again in 1960, con-
structing ry offices and cl In 1964, the Bath Community Church was al-
tered to become a United Church of Christ.2

The Reverend Ronald Marmaduke, the present minister of the Bath United Church of Christ,
enunciates an alteration recently occurring in the church: not only does he serve as a pastor but
as a “principal.”3 From September, 1967, to March, 1968, the kindergarten and first grades of
Bath Elementary School were temporarily located in the church. Indeed, the building has dis-
covered yet another use.

A second old church in Bath Township also possesses a varied and unusual past. The Ghent
Christian Church, initially originated in 1830, today is located at 4200 Granger Road. Eighteen
thirty marks the year in which Mr. William Hauden, a follower of the Disciple religion, delivered
a series of sermons in Granger Township, Medina, Ohio. The result was a congregation of twelve
members soon developing, meeting in an old school once located at the corner of Medina Line
Road and Bath Road. In 1843, Mr. Marshall Wilcox helped to further the formal organization of
the Disciple Church. Wilcox’s efforts cu].mmzted in a total of 62 charter members for the church.
Philander Green became a i her-elder, serving the ion for more than
twenty years. Under his authority, a pen—nmen! structure for the members was erected in 1860.4

“Where, however, was the church to be built?”” was a common topic of this time. An unusual

I1bid.

2Interview with the Rev. Ronald Marmaduke, March 14, 1968.
31bid.

4“The History of Ghent Church,” Mrs. Hope Jacot.
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method was eventually utilized. Of two groups of solicitors, the congregations from Ghent and
East Granger, the members from East Granger contributed the most money. This action ultimate-
ly caused the site of Medina Line Road and Granger Road to be chosen. The structure erected in
1860 still exists, serving as the home of the Foky family today. !

With the new building, services in Ghent ceased until 1907. Under the leadership of Mrs. Ann
Wycoff and Mrs. Emma Burgan, the Ghent Ladies Aid Society decided that their section of Bath
should have a church. Previously, meetings were occasionally held in the Ghent school and a Sun-
day school flourished there under Mrs. Henry Freeman’s direction. An organization was soon
formed. Canvassing the community and raising pledges, the people began the venture of con-
structing a new church in late 1901. The Reverend W. A. McCartney became the first minister
of the church. With land donated by Mr. Jared Barker, the structure was erected on what is to-
day the southwest corner of Route 21 and Yellow Creek Road.

The original building still remains at this location, owned for six years by the Village Interior
Decoratorsand in 1967, converted into a structure housing the Saint Luke’s Episcopal Mission.2

Unterview with Mrs. Walter Grosh, March 8, 1968.
21bid.
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with the help of his sons William, Andrew (the first white child born to a legal settler in Bath),
and James built a large brick house. This house still stands on Oak Hill Road as Hale Homestead,
property of the Western Reserve Historical Society and now operated as a museum. Designed in
the Connecticut style of architecture, the house was built of bricks that Jonathan made from
clay found on the property. The house is tall and square with three stories and two wings at the
rear. Three generations of Hales lived in the house before it was bequeathed to the Western Re-
serve Historical Society in 1955 by Miss Clara Belle Ritchie, Hale descendant and owner of the
house and property. Jonathan, with his first wife Mercy, and after her death, with his second
wife Sarah and their children, Sophronia, William, Pamelia, Andrew, Abigail, James, Jonathan,
Mercy, and Samuel lived in the house first. Jonathan’s son Andrew with his wife Jane and their
children Pamelia, Sophronia, Clarissa, Charles Oviatt, Alida, and John inherited his father’s
house. C.O. Hale as Charles Oviatt was called. and his wife Pauline Cranz then inherited the
house. C.O. Hale and his wife had no children, but their marriage joined two old families of
Bath.

The Cranz family became inhabitants of Bath in 1863 when the brothers William and Edward
moved from Holmes County, Ohio to Oak Hill Road near Andrew Hale’s farm. William bought
Jason Hammond’s house and property on Oak Hill Road. There in the house now owned by
Harmon Cranz, William and his wife Mary had eleven children.! Their daughter Pauline married
Charles Oviatt Hale. William’s son Lewis had a son Carl, who lives in Bath today on Ira Road.
Carl farmed the Hale property for many years, for his uncle C.0. Hale was representative to the
Ohio legislature for several terms. William’s son Eugene had three sons Luman, Harmon, and
Paul, who also live in Bath today. Harmon lives on Oak Hill Road in his grandfather’s house and
Luman lives across the road. Paul Cranz lives on Medina Line Road.

The brother Edward bought property next to Jonathan Hale on Oak Hill Road. Edward and
his wife Louisa had six children. Their son Carl had a daughter Celia, who lives in Bath today in
her grandfather Edward Cranz’ house.3

Arelative of the Cranzes who moved to Bath in 1894 was Charles Joss, whose father J.N. Joss
married Louisa Cranz, sister of William and Edward Cranz. Charles Joss owned and operated one
of the cheese factories of Bath. It was on Ira Road east of Bath in the valley between McCaus-
land’s and McKisson’s. His son Eldon lives on the Joss farm on Ira Road near North Revere
Road.#

Another early settler was Jason Hammond, the first Hammond in Bath Township, arriving in
1810 shortly after Jonathan Hale. Hammond had begun his journey from Connecticut one day
before Hale, but because they took two different routes, they never met one another in the
course of travelling. Hammond travelled west via the Hudson River, through Pittsburgh while
Hale travelled paralle]l to Lake Erie, through Buffalo.5 When he arrived in Bath in 1810, Mr.

1 Arthur C. Johnson, Sr., The Cranz History, p. 34.
2Interview. Mr. Luman Cranz. February 9, 1968.
3Johnson, p. 59.

4bid., p. 62.

SJohnJ. Horton, The Jonathan Hale Farm (Cleveland: The Western Reserve Historical Society,
1961), p. 4.
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Bath’s history. It has long been admired for its unusual Corinthian pillars on either side of
the front door. Other buildings included the Country Gifts Shop, the original Bath Church, Roy

Pugh’s home, and the Antique Shops. The Corbitt home, the Mihelcic home, and the Armitage
home were also the original Hershey farm.

The nearby Davis Homestead, said to be the first home in Bath to have indoor plumbing, is
no longer standing. |

The house built in 1855 by Clement Jagger was moved to the Hale Homestead in 1961. It re-
mains as a good example of Western Reserve of Greek Revival architecture and was originally
located across from Poor Richard’s Pub. Mr. Jagger's occupation was that of  fancy surrey man-
ufacturer.

Unterview with Mrs. K. M. Wood, February 16, 1968.
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Creek Road. Perry, Robert, and Clara now live in Akron, and Gladys became Mrs. Bunnell and
now lives in California. Jay Park died in a plane crash as a young man.

David Alexander married Eliza Holmes and they also lived in Bath. They had three children:
Mary, Martha, and Eugene. Mary Margaret and Martha were never married, but Eugene married
Susan Bark of Royalton and they had two children: Ruth, who married Roy Pugh and now lives
on Cleveland-Massillon Road, and Hugh.2

The third son, Jackson, was married but his wife’s name is unknown. They lived in the Bath
Center area and raised four children: Alvin, Hudson, Arthur, and Perry.3

The Barker family was another of the early families to settle in the Ghent area. Their home-
stead occupied all of Ghent on both sides of Yellow Creek. The land was purchased by Sarah
Barker’s great-great-great grandfather Edward, who was a prominent merchant in Connecticut.
He did not live on the homestead, but several members of the Barker family live in this area
today.

Lanson Barker (1791-1855) was the first of the family to come to Ohio. He arrived in Holmes
County in 1846 with his wife, Besty Phelps (1795-1847). A year later he moved to Massillon,
then a few weeks after that, he went to Granger in Medina County.S Lanson lived in Granger
for several years and then moved on, finally settling in Cuyahoga County. He and his wife had
eight children and their oldest son, William, was the first Barker to live on the Ghent homestead.5

William (1817-1896) married Elizabeth Hutchison in 1856 and came to Ghent in 1857. He
and his wife lived in a log cabin which stood on what is now the Hubert Fulton property on
Yellow Creek Road. They had three children: Lanson, Jared, and his twin Betty. Betty died in
infancy but Lanson and Jared inherited the homestead from their father.”

Lanson was born in 1857 and lived in Ghent his entire life. He married Alice Behmer of Rich-
field and they lived on one half of the homestead. Lanson built the house that is now the Hubert
Fulton home, and lived quietly as a simple farmer.8 They had three children: Anna, Fred, and
Alba. Anna Barker was unmarried and died at the age of forty. Fred Barker married Ila Houck,
who now lives on Yellow Creek Road in Ghent. They had a son, Fred Jr., who is now married
and also lives in Ghent. Alba Barker married Elizabeth Freeman, now Mrs. Henry Grosh, who
still lives in Ghent. They had three children: Mary Ruth, Charlotte, and Lois. Mary Ruth, who
now lives with her mother in Ghent, married Jim Haynes and they had a daughter, Mary Lynn.
Charlotte married Andrew Miller and they have five children: David, James, Carol, Paul and Den-
nis, who live with them on Crystal Lake Road. Lois-married Hubert Fulton and they live on

Unterview. Mr. Clair Alexander. March 20, 1968
2Interview. Mrs. Roy Pugh March 21, 1968
3Interview. Mr. Clair Alexander. March 20, 1968.
4nterview. Mrs. Tla Barker. February 2, 1968.
SIbid.

Slnterview. Mrs. Sarah Schwinn. February 29, 1968.
ibid.

B1bid.
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Yellow ?reek Road in Ghent. They also have five children: Richard, Mary Anne, Betty, Nancy,
and Pat.

Lanson’s brother Jared was born in 1861 and he married Almira Myers of Indiana in 1883.
They lived on the other half of the homestead and built the house, which is now the Fred Barker
home, in 1883. Jared was a very active and respected man in the community, and a staunch
Republican supporter. He built and operated one of the first sawmills in Ghent. It was located
on Yellow Creek Road across from the Hubert Fulton home and used the water from the creek
for power. In 1902, Jared was elected Summit County Sheriff and then later became County
Commissioner. He also established a model dairy in Fairlawn on what is now White Pond Drive,
and was president of the Akron Milk Producers’ Association for thirteen years.2 Jared and Almira
had five children: Pearl, Bessie, Mary, Sarah, and William. Pearl Barker married Ellsworth Halder-
man and they had a son Jared. Bessie Barker married Harry Hawkins and she became a leader in
the community. She worked at the Summit County courthouse for several years and served as
an active supporter of the Republican party. She was also the first president of the Summit
County Parents and Teachers’ Association and an important organizer of the Bath PTA.3 Bessic
had a son, Gerald, who married Mary Miller and they had two children: Gerald Jr. and Lynn
Jay. Mary Barker, daughter of Jared and Almira Barker, married William Kuder and they had
three children: Marjorie, Betty, and Virginia. Marjorie married Odell Poole. Betty married Wil-
liam Crawford and they had two sons, Randall and Collins. Virginia, Mary and William Kuder’s
daughter married John Ulman. Sarah Barker, the only one of Jared’s five children who is still
living, married William Schwinn and now lives on Yellow Creek Road. William Barker died at
the age of fourteen.4

In the years following the arrival of the first early settlers in Bath, the Millers, the Hales, the
Hammonds, the Barkers, and the Alexanders, many other settlers also established themselves in
Bath. This influx of new pioneers was especially apparent after 1850 when Bath was developing
into a thriving community. Mrs. Alleen Stein, descendant of Captain Aaron Miller of Stony Hill
has a unique way of displaying the names of these first families of Bath: on a quilt made by
Harriet Miller, Mrs. Stein’s great-great-grandmother, with each block bearing the name of one of
the original families.

The blocks in one section of the quilt are decorated with the names of Woodruff, Baumgardner,
Salisbury, Shaw, Black, Whitcraft, Boltz, Robinson, Wolf, Porter, Bishop, Davis, Moore, Smith,
Young and Ganyard. Most of these families have descendants who still live in Bath.5

The name Jagger is embroidered across one of the blocks to designate the Clemen Jagger
family. Coming to Hammond’s Corners in 1852 from Richfield where his father Elmus Jagger
was a schoolteacher. Clemen married Jane Perry, great granddaughter of Admiral Oliver Perry.
As the fancy surrey-maker and wheel-maker of Bath, Clemen Jagger was well respected in Bath
Township and the neighboring townships where he also did business. In 1855 Clemen built a
Greek Revival house on the southwest corner of Ira and Cleveland-Massillon Roads. This house,
because it is an excellent example of Western Reserve architecture, was moved to Hale Home-

Unterview. Mrs. Ila Barker. February 26, 1968.
2Interview. Mrs. Sarah Schwinn. February 29, 1968.
3Interview. Mrs. Hubert Fulton. March 6, 1968.
Interview. Mrs. Sarah Schwinn. February 29, 1968.

Shnterview. Mrs. Alleen Stein. February 16, 1968.
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Ruth, Helen, Anna, and Mary. Helen, married to Ford Crile is the only Hopkins who still lives
in Bath. Cecil and Paul, who live in Copley, are still in the lumber business.

The remaining blocks of this purposeful quilt bear the names of Shoemaker, Van Devere, Ellis,
Worden, McFarlin, Low, Thorp, Heller, Hackett, Hagenbaugh, Pierson, Boughton, Emery. Stipe,
Clapper, Wilson, Mull, Sprankle, Hutchinson, King, Hopkins, and Rothrock.2 Thus, this quilt
withits numerous blocks, all proudly bearing the names of the pioneer families of Bath, is a fine
reminder to Bath residents, today, of the many hard-working men and women who labored to
build this community.

Unterview. Mrs. Ruth Ganyard. May 1, 1968.
2Interview. Mrs. Alleen Stein. February 16, 1968.
Mary Jane Shafer

Charles Uhl
Susan Leach
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SCHOOLS

Schools are as old as Bath itself. The first school in Bath was located in the Northeast corner
of Bath, in an 1810 log house near the Hale Homestead. This building was about 16 square.
From 1810 on, schools were held regularly, if not roughly, in some part of the township or an-
other. The schools moved with the centers of population as parents decided their children needed
an education. Schools were held mostly in abandoned homes and buildings, and it was not until
1820 that the first building set up expressly for a school was built. (The location is obscure;
however, it was either at Hammond’s Corners, or Ghent.) Another population center, Hurd’s
corners, gained a school by 1828.1

At this time there was no compulsory education. Consequently, there were no state, county,
or local funds. These schoolhouses merely grew up wherever several families combined to pro-
vide their children with an education. They built, leased, or bought schoolhouses, and collectively
paid a teacher. This teacher was not only teacher, but a woodcutter, janitor and principal as well.
No credentials were needed, but most teachers had at least a high school education.? Instead of
the qualifications set for teachers by the state today, a different system was used. Teachers would
take examinations in subjects they taught, in order to prove their fluency. The time granted in
their license depended on their scores on these tests. A score of 70 to 75% would yield a one-
year license, 75 to 80% a 2-year license, etc. A teacher’s score would combine with how much
experience he had in determining wages. Teaching all 8 grades, a teacher’s salary in the early
1900’s was between $40 and $55 a month.3 Bath was first divided into two districts, north and
south, but bitter arguments ensued as each family wanted a school as close as possible. Subse-
quently, the districts continued to be divided and subdivided until they reached nine in the
1880’s.4 By this time the present system of property taxes had been installed. However, most of
the money remained in the township, very little went to the county, and none went to the statc
Districts were irregularly drawn, because, the schools were situated near the center of its pupils.5

Probably the largest of these schools was the two room school at Ghent. This, the only “two-
roomer” in Bath was situated where the Phillips 66 gas station is now (NE corner Yellow Creek
Road and Route 21) after which it was split up, with part going to the L. B. Johnson home
where it is greatly altered and the rest included in the Bath home of Ruth Huffmaster.5

Another important District school was to the north, at Bath Center on the corner of Bath
Road and Route 21. Located where the Grange Hall parking lot is now, in 1893 it became the

Iwilliam Henry Perrin, History of Summit County, 1881, p. 625.

2nterview, Mrs. Walter Grosh.

3interview, Mrs. Cora Leiby Monegan. Another source stated that women teachers were paid
$25-$28 monthly while men received $30 out of which they paid $1 each month for janitorial
help.

4William Henry Perrin, History of Summit County.

SInterview, Mrs. Cora L. Monegan.

6Interview, Mrs. Walter Grosh.
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this time, a chapel was purchased to serve the congregation of 135. In 1960, following a building
fund drive, the site of the present church, at Smith and Revere Roads, was purchased. The new
building, which contains offices, classrooms, chapel, cultural hall, baptismal font, and library,
was started in October of 1964 and completed in October of 1966, just two years later.! The pre-
sent church, located at 735 Revere Road, has a congregation of 784, and is under the direction
of Bishop Robert Walsh.

The Jehovah’s Witness Church, located at 1090 Cleveland-Massillon Road, was built by the

bers of the i .C in 1963, services were begun the following
year. There are ten churches of this denomination in the Akron area, and the one in Bath serves
50 members from the Bath-Richfield area. Mr. John W. Donnenwirth is the City Servant for the
entire Akron area, but holds his services in his church here in Bath.2

A unique feature of St. Luke’s Episcopal Mission, located at 3636 West Yellow Creek Road,
is its altar. It was constructed from the door of a Jewish Synogogue.3 Another interesting fact
about the church is that it is located in the former home of the Ghent Christian Church.

The congregation was first formed in February of 1962, when some Episcopalians in the area
investigated the possibility of forming a Mission in Bath. The first services were held in the Bath
Town Hall, with an attendance of 23 families. When the congregation increased in size, services
were moved across the street to Bath Elementary School. The church continued to grow during
the next two years, and the board of the church made arrangements to buy the former Ghent
Christian Church, also previously occupied by Village Interiors. Before the sanctuary was com-
pleted, services were held in August of 1967 in the Sunday School room. The first service to be
held in the sanctuary itself took place on December 10, 1967. The church was formally dedicated
on January 7, 1968. “The Mission maintains an average of fifty to fifty-five families under the
leadership of the Reverend Reed VanDeventer, Vicar.”

One of the first churches in the Cleveland Diocese to be built in accordance with the new
rules established by the Second Vatican Council, held from 1962-1966, is Saint Victor Catholic
Church, located at 3435 Everett Road. Instead of the altar being placed in the traditional position
against the back wall of the church, it is moved forward, leaving room for the priest to stand be-
hind it, facing the congregation, while serving Mass.5 The architectural style of the church isa
combination of traditional and modern, a pleasing setting for a congregation composed of par-
ishoners from Richfield Township and from Bath Township north of Bath Road.

In June, 1964, Saint Victor Mission was established. Services were held at Eastview Junior
High School. Father Anthony Gawlik began his duties at St. Victor’s when it was founded, and
he still continues as Pastor. March 1, 1965, St. Victor’s was established as a parish, and construc-
tion was started in August of that year. The first Mass was celebrated on July 19 of 1966 on the
new church when the construction was completed. The church was formally dedicated and
blessed on Sunday, November 6, 1966.6

1<The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints” historical sketch.
2nterview with Joel Donnenwirth, March 15, 1968.

3Saint Luke’s history sheet.

Hbid.

Sinterview with Father Gawlik, March 18, 1968.

6pamphlet from dedication of Saint Victor Catholic Church.
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no one would be the wiser. This industrious activity lasted for many years until the turn of the
century.l

Another industry located in Ghent on Wye Rd. was honeymaking. In a unique, octagonal,
two-story beehive, Thomas Pierson kept bees. The bees were all inside of the building in smaller
hives and entered through small holes. The owner could walk in the door and take all of the
honey that he needed. The building still stands in back of what is now the House of Willard. The
owner’s knowledge of bees led the A. I. Root Company to ask him for his help. This company
is still in operation in Medina as a producer of honey, wax, and bee-keepers’ supplies.

Approximately where the Phillips’ 66 gas station is now, was once located a cider mill owned
by Mr. Davis, and an apple orchard was near the mills.

There was even a surrey-maker in Bath. Mr. Clemen Jagger made fancy surreys for residents
of Bath and other communities.3

A cooper business, which made barrels, was located between Ghent and Bath on Cleveland-
Massillon Road.

Across the creek from the woolen mill at Ghent was an ashery where farmers’ wives would
bring ashes from cooking to be prepared for making soap with fats, also from the farm.

When Jonathan Hale was building his house in 1825, he dug up limestone from his land and
sold limestone casks up and down the river for cloth for his wife Mercy.5

Every community needs a doctor, and Doctor Robert Smith and Dr. Bear at Hammond’s
Corners were two who served the township for many years.

In modern Bath, there is very little as far as occupation is concerned that would remind one
of the Bath of a hundred years ago. Whereas everyone used to be farmers, last year only three res-
idents declared themselves farmers - Mr. Eldon Joss, Mr. Edward Stein, and Mr. Ralph Valentine.

Zoning regulations prohibit any formal industry in Bath but there are many commercial con-
cerns. Gas stations, grocery stores, art galleries, antique shops, a florist, a pharmacy, restaurants,
ahardware store, a tractor store, clothing stores, interior decorating shops, and hair-dressing and
barber shops have all found their way to Bath. There are also professional offices scattered
throughout the area.

On Medina County Line Road near the Bath Golf Course, owned by Mr. Garland Parsons, is
the Clearwater Sand and Gravel Company. When the company has finished digging, a lake will
be put on the spot.

The mills of course are long gone with the exception of the old woolen mill and Sterling
Alderfer’s mill, which is actually new because its predecessor burned down, and the mill had to
be rebuilt. Only time will tell whether or not Bath opens itself to industry; it may be forced to
because of the high taxes of living in a non-industrial area. But even if industry does come to
Bath, it can never take the place in the lives of the residents that the mills and other early indus-
tries had when the settlers were far from each other and any other town.

Unterview with Mr. Clair Alexander. February 22, 1968.

2Ibid.

3Interview with Mrs. Nancy Kalin. February 21, 1968.

“Interview with Mrs. Elizabeth Grosh. March 19, 1968.

SWilliam Ellis, The Cuyahoga (New York:Holt, Rinehart, Winston, 1966), p. 217.

Carol Hoekje
Wayne Jennings
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Near the Bath-Richfield line on Everett Road stood a U. B. church, nicknamed “The Block.”
The cemetery associated with the structure may still be seen opposite Hillcrest Elementary
School. Records indicate that the church was first organized in 1874 and ultimately disbanded
in 1926.

Near the Bath-Copley line stood a second U. B. church. Previously mentioned, this church
was the Montrose Church located on Route 18. A third U. B. church was organized at Hurd’s
Corners, today the intersection of Bath Road and Hametown Road. The approximate dates for
itsexistence are from 1861-1926. In 1926, both the U. B. church at Hurd’s Corners and the U. B.
church on Everett Road were disbanded because of the lacking support and interest.!

An Evangelical Church serving persons in east Bath was erected at what is today the south-
west corer of Revere Road and Shade Road.2 The cemetery associated with this building is still
in existence. Moore’s Chapel, a ¥ i ization, was erected on Road, near
the Shaw farm. These several churches served Bath Township faithfully for decades, each indivi-
dual building adding a certain depth to the religious aspect of the community. Although com-
posed of only a score of members, each church slowly grew, providing places of worship for the
devout persons settling Bath Township. C ions often became closely-knit groups, par-
ticipating in summer picnics, bazaars, and parties together. The early efforts of these congrega-
tions created a pathway for the churches of today to follow.

Having a church but no congregation was the plight of Bethel Lutheran Church, located at
3852 Everett Road. Instead of renting a building in which to hold services, the American Luther-
an Church lends money for the building of churches to newly formed churches. Bethel Lutheran
Church was built before the ion was definitely established.3

The Reverend Paul Radloff, the first and only pastor of Bethel Lutheran Church, came to the
area in 1964. The church was built in December of that year.

The church draws its members from the American Lutheran Church. Each individual church
is an extension of the one main organization.# The present ion numbers 330, with 62
adult charter members.

Fairlawn Brethern Church, which now stands at 754 Ghent Road, was first organized in 1958,
and services were held in Rankin School in Akron. The first minister was Dr. Raymond Ging-
rich. The present church was built and completed in 1960, and was built by the Brethern Home
Mission Council. The council is in charge of the Brethern Construction Crew, which builds the
Brethern churches.5 The crew, 3 men and their families, came to Bath in 1960 and lived here
for one year. During this time, they built the church, doing all the contracting and construction
themselves. In 1962, Dr. Gingrich was replaced by the Reverend Vernon Harris. There are 111
members of the Fairlawn Brethern Church, and approximately 30 charter members.

The Church of Jesus Christ of Latter-day Saints can trace its beginnings in Akron to 1906,
when only one church member lived there. As new members of the church moved to the area,
meetings were held in various homes and halls until a time directly preceeding World War II. At

Ibid.

2History of Montrose-Zion E. U. B. Church.
3interview with Mr. Radloff.

4bid.

SInterview with Reverend Harris.
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ing to the Six Nations west of the western boundary of Pennsylvania which they had acquired
by conquest.! On January 21, 1785, the Wyandots, Delawares, Chippewas, and Ottawas signed
away their lands west of Pennsylvania and north of the Ohio River except for a reservation
bounded on the east by the Cuyahoga River, Portage Path, and the Tuscarawas; on the south by
a line running west from Fort Lawrence near the present town of Bolivar, to Laramie’s Store,
forty miles north of Dayton; and on the west by the St. Mary’s and Maumee Rivers to the present
city of Toledo.2 This put the Delawares and Wyandots on the west side of the Cuyahoga, Portage
Path, and Tuscarawas, making the Portage between the Tuscarawas and Cuyahoga Rivers the
western boundary of the United States. Because the chiefs who signed this treaty did not know.
what they were signing, were under the influence of liquor, and did not have the right to speak
for the entire tribe, the Indians never recognized the Fort McIntosh Treaty. When the white
settlers swarmed into Ohio—even into the Wyandot-Delaware reservation—the Indians were re-
sentful and started border wars, as they had before when settlers moved in. Anthony Wayne de-
feated the Indians at the Battle of Fallen Timbers and forced them to sue for peace. On August
3, 1795 they signed the Treaty of Fort Greenville, a treaty which was the same as the Fort
Mlntosh Treaty of ten years before.3

In 1805 at Fort Industry at Toledo, the Indians sold all rights in the Western Reserve and the
firelands for $18,916.67. The Portage and Cuyahoga River had been the Indian boundary for
twenty years.4

In 1810 when Jonathan Hale moved into Bath, the Indians were friendly and very numerous.
Generally shiftless, they begged for whisky at white men’s doors, although they traded game for
vegetables with the white men and helped them when they were sick by giving them herbs for
medicine.5 Once an old chief named Jambolas who had one black and one beautiful eye was at
Mr. Hale’s home when he began to jabber Indian. Mrs. Miller, one of the early squatters in Bath,
told him to speak English. Jambolas shook his head and said, “Me Indian.” Mrs. Miller said, “I
know you are Indian, but you can talk English if you have a mind to.” Mr. Hale gave him a glass
of rum which he had brought from Connecticut, which the old chief drank. Then Jambolas
xmacl%ed his lips and said, “Damn Indian—me white,” and pulling down his under lid, “see blue
eye.”

Two years after the Hales settled in Bath, they were exposed to danger with the Indians
when General Hull surrendered at Detroit in the War of 1812. Because they did not know when
they would be attacked, the settlers west of the Cuyahoga buried their provisions and furniture
in holes in the ground. William Hale, a son of Jonathan, was just about old enough to know the
value of the pudding stick, which he hid in a split rail where it stayed until there was peace
again.

1C.R. Quine (compiler), Old Portage and The Portage Path, (1953), p. 7.
2Grismer, p. 29.

31bid., p. 30.

4Quine, p. 9.

SGrismer, p. 60.

6Bierce, pp. 32-33.
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Hammond purchased lots 26, 27, 28, 29, and 30 which would now be on Oak Hill and Ira Roads.
The holuse on this property was erected in 1827 and it now belongs to and is occupied by Harmon
Cranz.

Jason Hammond married Rachel Hale and they had five children: Theodore, Rachel, Lewis,
Mary, and Horatio. Their daughter Rachel became a schoolteacher in Bath.

Jason died September 27, 1830 and his wife died twelve years later on November 11, 1842.
Lewis Hammond, Jason and Rachel’s son, inherited the house and property. He completed the
house in 1836.2

Lewis and his wife Eleanor had eight children: William, Rolland, Edwin, Erwin, Charles,
Sabra, Eleanor and Winfield Scott, all born in Bath.

Lewis died on March 10, 1849 and his wife died in the same year on June 8. Edwin and Erwin
acquired their father’s property. They evenly split the land, but shortly after Erwin bought out
Edwin. In 1863, Erwin sold the farm to William Cranz.3

On February 24, 1830, Merwin Kingsbury Hammond was born making him the first Hammond
to be born in Bath. When he was twenty years of age, he moved to Stockton, Illinois and eight
years later he married Samantha Fowler. After their marriage, the Hammonds moved to Calif-
omia to join the Gold Rush, but because they did not prosper, they returned to Stockton. The
children of Merwin and Samantha Hammond were Willis, Charles, and Alice.4

The only living Hammond now residing in Bath is Miss Alice Englebeck. Her mother was Anna
Harmon Englebeck whose mother was Samantha Fowler Englebeck. Miss Englebeck now lives
on Yellow Creek Road.

The Alexander family was a prominent family in the Ghent area. John and Martha Alexander,
Clair Alexander’s great-grandparents, came to Ghent from Lancaster, Pennsylvania in 1831. They
owned land on both the north and south sides of Bath Road, and built the house where Harvey
Smith now lives. The house is located off the left side of Cleveland-Massillon Road just past Bath
Center as one travels toward Ghent. John and Martha had three sons: Perry, David, and Jackson.
who were all born in this house.

Perry, who was a veteran of the Civil War, operated a small construction company in Bath.
Many of the houses and barns he built are still standing in 1968. He was an active member of the
community. He acted as one of the first trustees, the treasurer of Bath Township, and member
of the Bath school board. Perry married Clara Coffin and they had five children: Alonzo, John,
Wilbur, Belle, and Mary. Alonzo followed in his father’s footsteps and he, too, served as a trustee,
treasurer to the township, and a member of the school board. He married Hattie Behmer of
Richfield and they had eight children: Nellie, Helen, Clair, Perry, Gladys, Robert, Clara, and Jay.
Nellie and Helen were twins and they later became Nellie James and Helen Hale through marriage.
Clair has been an active member of the community for many years and now lives on Yellow

Unterview. Mr. Luman Cranz. February 9, 1968.

20.W. Hale, Old Homesteads of the Hale-Hammond Pioneers, p. 5.
31bid., p. 5.

Interview. Miss Alice Englebeck. February 25, 1968.

Stbid.

Sinterview. Mr. Clair Alexander. March 20, 1968.
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In the days before the county assumed the responsibility for the maintenance of the county
highways, there often occured problems between adjoining townships over the repair of the bor-
dering or town line roads. To help remedy this inconvenient situation arising over the delegation
of responsibility, Bath made agreements in 1876 with Richfield, Copley, and Northampton. A
typical agreement would be similar to the 1867 agreement between Bath and Copley. Under this
agreement Bath was to repair the western section of Smith Road (now Route 18) from where
Bath Center Road (Route 21) intercepted it, and Copley would assume responsibility for the re-
maining eastern portion of the road.

= 3 . S =]

The early roads in Bath Township were so rural and isolated that several plans for the road
improvement were developed that would employ focal workmen. One of these plans allowed the
people who lived along a road to repair and maintain that particular section of the road. This
right entitled a man to a discount on his Road Tax.

1Records of Bath Township, Summit C., Ohio, Vol. 1.
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The first mention of street lighting for the safety and convenience of township residents came
in January of 1946. This step was a great stride toward the great number of lights along our
roads presently. The best example of this is seen on Everett Road.

As our township grows in population and in the number of allotments, our roads will grow
proportionately more extensive. This is the pattern of the past and will probably continue to be
the pattern in the future. The over fifty allotments now in Bath have made their contributions
to the township’s road system with the addition of such roads as Martadale, Shade Park, Ranch-
wood, and Oak Knoll Drive. The future residents of Bath will see many great improvements in
our already adequate transportation facilities.

John Warner
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Brock; Treasurer, James McKibben; Coordinator, David Darst.
Ruth Bond

February 2, 1889, James Hale, a Deputy Master and a member of Osborn’s Corner’s Grange
came and helped organize the Bath Grange. There were 120 charter members. Of these 68 were
men and 52 were ladies.

Perry Moore was elected the first master. Milton Miller was the first overseer and C. S. Parsons
was the first lecturer. The names of the other officers are available in the Grange History.

The first Grange picnic was held in July 1889 at the grove of J. P. Alexander. In the early
days, the Grange was an agricultural organization whereby they bought supplies cooperatively.
Free oyster suppers, strawberry festivals and feasts were prevalent.

The present Township Hall was built in the fall of 1908. The first meeting the Grange held in
the new Town Hall was February 20, 1909. Ira Underwood was master and there was a member-
ship of 100. In early years, meetings were held in the afternoon.

Bathisnext to the oldest Grange in Summit County. It meets the second and fourth Tuesday
evening of each month.

Pearl Miller is the only surviving Gold Sheaf member. She is the daughter-in-law of the first
overseer. Members of their family have been active in Grange and community affairs from the
time of the early settlers.

Many community projects and groups are sponsored by the Grange. Many honors have been
won by Bath Grange 1331. For 30 years in September they have sponsored a Fair.

Bath Grange is always present to help as they did by being the first organizational contributor
toward the Sesquicentennial.

Lee Darst, who serves as Master, has the honor of being the youngest Master in the State of
Ohio.

Alleen E. Stein
Pearl Miller
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of Granger Road and Wye Road in Ghent Corners. (refer to map) This building was built and
operated before the Civil War; during and after this same War, it was owned by Henry Pardee.

was the only building to have a telephone. Around 1918 or 1920, O. R. Hershey sold the build-
ing to Delbert Statts; in 1955, the store was completely destroyed by a fire.

N

The small house, now called the Gingerbread House, on North Wye Road, was also built be-
fore the Civil War. It was the home of Henry Pardee, who was also the builder, and his family.
His son, Gene Pardee, later sold it in 1905 to Mrs. Cummins.

The House of Willard Florist Shop, now on the south end of Wye Road, was built by Thomas
Pierson. He was from Pennsylvania and came and built this house in 1837, as his residence (he
was the great-great grandfather of Frank Pierson, who lived on West Bath Road, and now lives
on Karen Drive in Akron). Behind this building, which is still standing, is a two-story octagonal
building which was originally a bee-house, the only one in the country.

An interesting story concerning the residents around Ghent Center is that one about the gas
explosion. In 1904 everyone in Ghent told the gas company not to lay their pipeline beneath
Yellow Creek unless it was several feet deep, but the scientists of that era knew all the dangers
and calculated risks in running their first pipeline from West Virginia to Cleveland. The people
of Ghent waited for the spring flood of the creek and the day when they could say “I told you
50.” because the pipe had been laid only two feet deep and would surely be washed up. It came,
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the summer. Sterling Alderfer was the mill’s owner when it burned down in the 1940’s. He then
i

OIS

rebuilt it into a manufacturing plant with its electricity generated by the wheel. The mill was
the center of his industrial operations for a while, and then Alderfer moved into Akron, making
the Yellow Creek mill a branch operation. Still standing and in very good condition today, the
‘mill manufactures polyurethane, commonly known as foam rubber.

The oldest woolen mill in Ohio still stands on Granger Rd., just west of Cleveland-Massillon
Rd. as the home of Mrs. Walter Grosh. In 1832, the mill was built by Allen and Bloom, who then
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This was the former Ghent Christian Church, built in 1902. It was an outgrowth of the
East Granger Disciple Church.

The first Ghent School was located about 100 feet south of Yellow Creek road on Cleve-
land-Massillon road. It became too small and was moved to Wye drive on a site now oc-
cupied by Brown’s barber shop. It later became a blacksmith shop and then a garage be-
fore being torn down in the 1960’s. The Ghent School No. 4, the largest in the district, was
built close by in the 1880’s to replace the one mentioned above. It is now part of two
residences on Yellow Creek road. A cider mill was operated by Ben Heller on the north
side of Yellow Creek road across from the school.

The site of the Ghent pond, sometimes called Hershey pond. The race to the mills on the
south side of Yellow Creek is still visible.

Some of the foundation stones of the three story Ghent Grist and Flour Mill are still evi-
dent. It was built before 1870, burned in 1921, rebuilt, and burned again in 1923. Another
mill, which burned before 1870 was located at the back of the property. The mill race is
still visible along side of the hill.

Gypsies camped at this site for several years.

The Spoke and Felloe Mill, built by Jared Barker, produced lumber and as the name im-
plied, wheels for buggies.

The three story Harris Grist Mill was built after the Civil War on the northeast side of Yel-
low Creek road west of the concrete bridge across the creek. It burned in the 1880’s.

In pre-Civil War times, horses stolen in Indiana and Pennsylvania were traded on the south
banks of Yellow Creek between 3044 Yellow Creek road and Revere drive. McAllister
School No. 10 stood on the southwest corner of Revere (formerly known as the Richfield-
Croton House road) and Sourek roads.

Botzum cemetery. Ancestors of Bath residents are buried in this Northampton township
cemetery.

The Star mound, a five pointed Indian mound about thirty feet high, is visible from Bath
road looking south and west of the railroad tracks. The Botzum store and tavern was sit-
uated east of the railroad tracks and south of Bath road, along the banks of the canal. The
Botzum railroad depot stood on the north side of Bath road. Botzum was formerly called
Niles.

‘The unique bridge carried the Ohio canal over Yellow Creek at this site.

The infamous pre-Civil War counterfeiter Jim Brown lived at the intersection of Ira and
Akron-Peninsula road. The home is in the Bath school district.

Ira, formerly known as Hawkins, had a post office, railroad depot, the Howe publishing
company and a cheese factory.

The Ira school No. 8 was located at the southwest corner of the entrance of OId Trail
School.

The Ira cemetery has unmarked graves of Irishmen who helped build the canal which was
started in 1825.

‘The Hale Homestead is operated by the Western Reserve Historical Society and is open for
tours.

Through the cooperation of many Antique and Classic Car Clubs, the Bath Sesquicenten-
nial committee is sponsoring the “Old Car Show”, Sunday, July 14th from 1 to 5 pm.
The Bath branch of the Akron Public Library was started by the Bath Volunteers for ser-
vice four years ago. The library now houses over 6,000 volumes. Summer hours are Mon-
day through Thursday, 2-8 p.m., and Friday and Saturday 2-5 p.m.

The Hammond’s Corners school No. 1 was just north of the Whitcraft store, the largest
buildingin the area. The store is now Garth Andrew Interiors. The Ellis Inn was located at
the present site of the First National Bank. The Jagger Buggy shop, removed to the Hale
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HISTORICAL TOUR OF BATH

This is a guide for a tour, to take during Sesquicentennial Week, July 7th, through July 14th,
1968. There are several places opened for tours on the week-end which are starred (*) for your
convenience. There were points of interest we missed, but we hope you enjoy discovering many
of the sites and visiting exhibits. Please note dates and hours for exhibits. Covered wagon signs
designate numbered locations.

Montrose was known at various times as Latta’s Corners and also as Ellis’s Corners. A post
office and a U. B. Church were located there.

1. Stony Hill school No. 12 is the only district school still standing. It was built in the early
1890’s and closed in 1921. There was a cheese factory just north of the school.

2. Miller cemetery.

The first site of the Sumner Butter factory was just south of Granger road on the east side

of Medina Line road. Across the road from the butter factory was the Log Disciple Church,

organized in 1832. Next to this was the East Granger Disciple Church, built in 1860 or

1861.

4. The Worden store and post office.

5. Farley’s Corners School No. 11, the McFarland grocery which opened before 1845, a bar-
rel factory and blacksmith shop were on the northeast side of Bath road.

6. A grocery and shoemaker’s shop were located on the CYO property in the Shaw area.

7. The Moore’s Chapel Methodist Church was established in 1869 and closed in 1912. It was
located just north of the cemetery.

8. The Hurd’s corners U. B. Church was located about one-fourth mile south of the inter-
section on the east side of the road. The church was established in 1861 and closed in
1926. The Hurd’s corners school No. 5 was just north of the home on the northeast corner
of the intersection.

9. Black’s Woods and sugar bush was the location of the annual “Pioneer Picnic”, held from
before the Civil War to the mid 1930’s to commemorate Commodore Perry’s victory over
the British during the Battle of Lake Erie. (War of 1812)

10. The Hopkins Lumber Mill, operated by water turbine, was built by Roswell Hopkins in
1903 and operated until 1946.

11. The Yellow Creek Grist and Flour Mill was a three story mill run by an overshot water
water wheel. It burned and was rebuilt as a manufacturing plant. The large overshot water
wheel was used to generate electricity.

12. In 1853 the Clinton Line Extension Railroad, from Hudson to Tiffin was organized. The
project failed in 1856. Some evidence of the excavation is visible from the driveway of
3591 Granger Road.

13.  Woolen Mill, In 1832 the wood frame building was erected to process wool. It flourished
until late 1891. The original white poplar siding with some lettering is still visible on the
front of the building.

14. The Octagon “Bee House”, built to house honey bees, is the eight sided building behind
the home southwest of the bridge over Yellow Creek on Wye drive. Behind the Bee House,
in the south bank of the creek was an ashery where wood ashes were leached to make the
Iye used in making soap. The grocery, on the southwest corner of Granger and Wye roads
had a succession of owners including Henry Pardee, Otto Hershey, and Delbert Statts, the
latter being the owner from 1920 until the store burned in the mid 1950’s. The KOTM Hall,
built in 1898, was on the east side of Wye drive across from the grocery. The organization
was formed as a means of affording mutual life insurance for the members. The local
group disbanded in the 1940’s.

w





index-87_1.jpg
Survey Bill and Field Notes of Connecticut Western Reserve. Vol. 3, Book 8.

Permission granted from manuscript collection of the Western Reserve Historical Society,
Cleveland, Ohio.

Explanation: Surveyed in 1813 by G. R. Hawley, according to surveyors’ measure (Gunter’s),
One chain measures 66 feet; one link measures 7.92 inches.
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but it was late one spring night when the village heard a tremendous crash. Dr. Robert Smith,
living in what is now the House of Willard, heard the noise first and promptly went to investigate
with his lantern. Arriving at the bridge in a few short steps, Doc noticed his lantern beginning to
get much brighter. Immediately recognizing the symptoms, he threw his lamp into the creek. He
quickly informed the other neighbors that the big pipeline had broken and gas was pouring into
the valley under tremendous pressure. For several days no one was allowed to light stoves or
lamps. Dr. Smith was not the only one to hear the noise, however. Mrs. Ila Barker, then living
in the Triangle, upon hearing the loud boom sat bolt upright in bed and asked her mother if the
world was coming to an end. Her mother immediately told her to be quiet for a moment and they
would soon find out!!

L_G.gnGie nT 0' 3
Brown’s Barber Shop, located behind the E-Mar Restaurant on Wye Road, was originally the
site of a blacksmith shop and later  garage.

The original Black home stood where Robert Renner’s Interior Store is now situated on the
north end of Wye Road.
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ROADS AND TRANSPORTATION

The roads, canals, and railroads in and around Bath have played an important part in our past
growth and previous economic situations. Today the roads in Bath are continuing to increase in
importance as the residences increase and the number of workers in the population travel to and
from the urban areas.

Many of our present road facilities had their beginnings in advance of the first settlers. For
many years prior to the first settlement of Bath by Jonathan Hale, there were Indians within
our township. These Indians, through their varied activities, created the footpaths and trails be-
tween camps that later became roads for the settlers.

When the settlers arrived they found that these Indian footpaths were too narrow for their
weigh-laden wagons. Thus, they were forced to widen them. These widened and improved wagon
traces were later to be recognized as our first thoroughfares. However, not every road was created
in such a haphazard and unorganized manner. Some roads, such as Bath and Ira roads today,
are found to follow the old lot lines between two sections of property. This accounts for the
generally encountered straight lines incorporated within their courses. The exception to the pre-
ceding, however, is found within the present broken-line path of Revere Road where it inter—
sects Ira Road.

There also seems to have been a tendency to enclose the township within a margin or roads.
This tendency is illustrated by the roads now known as Sand Run, Medina Line, Everett, Smith,
and part of Route 18. Each of these roads is a straight line, thus indicating a planned effort in
their construction.

Due in part to the past importance of water and water power to industry, we find that Yellow
Creek and Granger Roads roughly follow the course of the Yellow Creek as it flows through
Ghent. This conveniently accounts for their viciously winding curves.

In 1811 Jonathan Hale and Timothy Bishop decided that a road into their homesteads would
be a very handy and convenient item. In response to this need, Jonathan went to the county
seat, then in Ravenna, with a petition signed by Hale and Bishop requesting a new road. Jon-
athan’s request was granted by the commissioners. For the small fee of five dollars Jonathan
was granted the right to construct the roads now known as Riverview and Oak Hill. He constructed
this eleven miles of road at his own expense from Pontey’s Camp near the location of Columbia
Road in Richfield to the Cuyahoga Portage. This road, now known as Oak Hill, turned off at
Everett and returned to Riverview Road at Botzum. Among the first persons to travel on this
new road were Jonathan’s sister, brother-in-law, and the This i Was arriv-
ing from Glastonbury, Connecticut to settle in Bath.

One of the earliest roads to pass east and west through Bath is the road known as Smith Road
in the southern extremity of the township. It is said to have been a military supply trail built by
General Smith during the War of 1812. This road connected the Old Portage with Camp Avery
in Huron County.

Another early and important road that is still vital today is the Cleveland-Massillon Road. The
importance and name of the earlier mentioned road stems from the fact that Cleveland-Massillon
Road was at one time a stagecoach route between Cleveland and Massillon. This route passed
through Ghent on what is now Wye Road, where it created a need for stores and hotels that has
been carried over into our own small commercial area, now also known as Ghent. The roads that
were present in 1850 are to be found on the maps of Bath in this chapter.

UHistorical Highlights of Medina (Medina: Alfred Meyers Lithographers, Inc., 1966), p. 95.
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